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4800TownCenterDrive• Leawood,Kansas66211• (913)339-6700

I (913)339-6781Fax
(913)339-6225TDD

I March 26, 2004

The Honorable Mayor,

I Members of the City Council
and the Citizens of Leawood, Kansas:

I -
It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Leawood
(City) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. This is the second year that the City's Department

I of Finance has prepared this report using the new reporting requirements as prescribed by GASBStatement No. 34. This is the first year that Leawood is required to comply with the Government

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, but early implemented last year.

I Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the United States of America requires that

management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial

I statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal isdesigned to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Leawood's
MD&A can be found immediately following the Auditor's report.

I The responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the

I enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairlythe financial position and results of operations of the various activities of the City. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been

i included.
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is prepared in accordance with GAAP as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The report is presented in three sections

I and includes the following information:

• Introductory Section - Letter of Transmittal with comments on the operations of the City, the

I list of principal officials, the Government Finance OfficersCity's organizational chart, a

Association of the United States Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial

Reporting for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ending December

i 3 I, 2002.

• Basic Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Information - The Basic Financial

I Statements include Management's Discussion and Analysis, Government-Wide FinancialStatements, Fund Financial Statements, Notes to the Basic Financial Statements and Required
Supplementary Information as well as the auditors' report on the financial statements and

I schedules.

• The Statistical Section - This section includes selected financial and general information

I presented on a multi-year comparative basis.
3
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The Financial Reporting Entity i

The Primary unit of the government is the City of Leawood and its component unit is described as
follows: I

The Primary Government •
The City was incorporated in 1948 as a city of the third class. On December 31, 1998 the City became a
city of the first class. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government with a city

administrator and the city provides the following services: police and fire protection, emergency •
preparedness, ambulance services, planning and zoning management, construction and maintenance of II
streets and infrastructure, comprehensive recreation and cultural events, and general administrative

services. I
As required by GAAP, the only basic financial statements presented are the City's (the primary

government) and one blended component unit. Blended component units, although legally separate I
entities, are, in substance part of the primary government' s operations and are included as part of the II
primary government. Accordingly, the Leawood Public Building Commission is reported in the Public

Building Commission Special Revenue Fund. I
i

The Shawnee Mission Unified School District No. 512 and the Blue Valley Unified School District No.

229 provide public education services. Johnson County Water District No. 1 provides water services. It •
should be clearly noted that these self-governed entities are not part of the City of Leawood.

THE CITY OF LEAWOOD I

The dream of a better life is the vital force driving Leawood's history and development. It is what the

Native Americans who first lived and prospered here...the French and American explorers and settlers
like Daniel Boone who followed..., and the people living and working here today who have made it one

of the region's premier residential and business communities.

The City currently has a land area of 15 square miles and is located in the eastern part of the state of i
Kansas, in Johnson County and since 1992 has been one of the top growth areas in the state and in the

country. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government with a city administrator. The I
mayor is elected on an at-large, non-partisan basis and serves a four-year term. The eight council

i

members are elected (non-partisan) by ward and serve four-year staggered terms of office. Every other ml

in the even numbered year, an election for council members is held with one council member from •year
HI

each of the four wards being chosen at each election,

According to the December 17, 2003 online edition of www.money.crm.com, Leawood was included in I
the magazine's annual list of most desirable places to live in the United States. Leawood has the eleventh

ID

highest median income in the United States at $102,106. The median age ofa Leawood resident is 41.3 I

years and 68% have at least a Bachelor's Degree. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both I
real and personal property located within its boundaries. The city's current land area is approximately

75% developed, and growth is expected to continue in the future. Leawood is nestled among the cities •
of Overland Park and Prairie Village, Kansas and is bounded to the east by Kansas City, Missouri. e

4 !
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LEAWOOD TODAY

I Leawood's population has more than doubled in 15 years to approximately 30,000 residents and isexpected to reach 40,000 within the next 10-15 years. The City of Leawood has experienced significant

growth in both residential and commercial developments over the last fifteen years. The majority of the

I City's growth has occurred in the southern portion of the City, which had been largely undeveloped. Theeconomic development experience with the City can be characterized as high bracket, single-family

subdivisions, shopping centers and office buildings. There are currently an estimated 600 business

I establishments located in the City. The City's location in the growing part of Johnson County, thequality of the two public school districts serving residents, and the over all high standards of living have

all contributed to economic growth in the City.

I Residential construction continues to grow in the City. Approximately 48 subdivisions are still
developing in the City. A total of approximately 1,200 homes are anticipated to be constructed in the

I new subdivisions. Prices for homes are anticipated to range from $300,000 to over $1 million.According to the Johnson County Appraiser's Office, the average home value in the City is $353,019.

I Although the majority of growth in Leawood has historically been residential, the City has been pursuinga program to expand and diversify its economic base. City estimates for potential commercial
development include 1 million square feet of new office space and 1.7 million square feet of retail space.

i Three large community shopping centers have been constructed in recent years, and the City's oldestretail center, Ranchman Shopping Center, completed a major upgrade in the past few years.

i OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE
The City currently has two major areas that are experiencing significant commercial growth. Tomahawk
Creek Parkway, located in the central part of the City, is experiencing significant new office space

I construction. Approximately ten have the four-lane
one-to-six-story buildings opened along winding

road in the last three years. Major tenants include the American Academy of Family Physicians, the
executive offices of United Parcel Service, Stratco, CBIZ, Merrill Lynch, and the Kansas City

I Orthopedic Institute.

Leawood Town Center Plaza, a large, upscale retail and commercial center opened in the City in 1996.

I Some of the large tenants at Town Center Plaza include Gaylan's Sporting Goods, Barnes & NobleBookstore, and AMC Theaters which is the "number one" theater in its chain. Many fine restaurants
including Hereford House, the Bristol, Houlihan's Dean and Deluca, Yahooz and Fentnn's are also in

I this complex.

Construction recently began on a 356,827 square foot retail and office complex along 135t_Street. The

I project, Cornerstone of Leawood, is planned to include 268,298 square feet of retail space and 88,259square feet of office space. The Cornerstone of Leawood site is located on 40 acres of annexed land

surrounded by the City and neighboring Overland Park, Kansas. Opening is expected by mid 2004.

I Additionally, 135thStreet, which runs 2.25 miles from the eastern to the western boundary of the City and
beyond, has recently seen groundbreaking for several new large retail and office developments. In 2001,

i Plaza Point, a retail/office development consisting of 181,100 square feet on thirteen lots, beganconstruction. To date, nine of the lots are open. In 2002 a new, large full-service grocery store opened at
Market Square, a retail site containing 134,160 square feet of retail and 27,000 square feet of office bank

i facilities.

5
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Park Place is a mixed-use residential and commercial development that will contain 170,900 square feet •
of office space, and 350 residential units containing 560,000 square feet on 33.67 acres located between
Town Center Plaza and Leawood City Hall. All totaled, this development will be a 1,231,800 square feet

development which will also include an 8-story boutique hotel. If completed, this development will be •
the first of its type not only in Leawood, but also in the Johnson County area.

Parkway Plaza is a mixed-use residential and commercial development that will contain 170,900 square •
feet of retail space, 43,600 square feet of office space, and 138 luxury condominium units or 16.74 acres.
This development is proposed between 133'dand 135tbStreets on both sides of Briar Street and will cover

approximately 47.21 acres of land. i
i

FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure I

i

designated to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse. City Management

must also ensure that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of accurate •
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control

structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The

concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits i
likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by

management.

Single Audit - As a recipient of federal, state and county financial assistance, the City is responsible for i

ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and

regulations related to those programs. The internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by i
management and the staff of the City. The City is not required to undergo an annual single audit in

iJ

conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act as amended in 1996 and the United States Office I

of Management and Budget Circular 1-133. I

Budgetary Controls - The City's budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis further modified by an i

encumbrance system of accounting as required by applicable state statutes. The City Administrator •
presents recommendations for the budget to the Mayor and City Council for their review. The budget

g

recommendations set forth the proposed funding level of the City's various operating and public service

programs. A series of public meetings are held by City Council committees to review alternative H
spending proposals. After a public hearing to solicit citizens' comments on the proposals, the City
Council adopts the budget. The budget is appropriately controlled through an accounting system to

ensure effective fiscal management and accountability. I o

Capital Projects - The City of Leawood is a vital and growing city. As a result, there continues to be a

need to provide for sound and appropriate growth. It is also a priority of the City to maintain and improve i
existing infrastructure. A vital element for managing both of these priorities is the development and

maintenance of the City's infrastructure through capital improvements. The management of the City's
i

Capital Improvements Program is controlled through the use of a long-range plan adopted by the Mayor m
and City Council. The Capital Improvements Program projects the City's capital improvement needs for

a five-year period and is reviewed and updated annually. The management and accounting of this plan is
controlled through the use of capital projects funds. The primary sources of financing these
improvements include general obligation bonds, City budgeted funds, county funds and revenue from

UP

federal and state grants, i

6
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I OTHER INFORMATION

Cash Management Policies and Practices. The City pools idle cash from all funds for the purpose of

I increasing through Cash, temporarily during year, was
income investment activities. idle the invested in

certificates of deposit and the State Municipal Investment Pool. The maturities of the investments
generally range from thirty days to one year, with the average maturity being six months. The City

I earned interest revenue of $438,926 on all investments, excluding the deferred compensation plan, for the
year ended December 31, 2003. The City's investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks
while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, 100% of City deposits were either

I insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All collateral on deposits was held either bythe City's agent or a financial institution's trust department in the City's name.

I Risk Management -The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. All potential

claims, claims expenditures, and/or liabilities are reported immediately when it becomes evident that a

I loss has occurred or a claim be made. These reports include an estimate of the claims' costs.
may

The City has addressed potential risk by purchasing various commercial insurance policies for certain

I insurable causes of loss. These policies cover property including buildings, contents, extra expenses,physical damage to vehicles, and contractor's equipment for direct damage due to many perils including
flood and earthquake.

I •In addition, the City carries insurance for instances in which the City is held to be legally liable for
bodily injury and property damage. Coverage includes general liability, firefighter's liability, automobile

I liability, and physical damage to vehicles, law enforcement liability, public official's liability, and excessliability coverage. The coverage provides $500,000 limits per occurrence for all claims capped by the
Kansas Tort Claims Act. Liabilities that fall outside the KTCA are insured to an additional $10 million

I in excess liability limits with exception of Employment Practices Liability which is covered up to$2,000,000. Other miscellaneous coverages purchased include employee dishonesty, theft of
cash/securities, and underground storage tank liability.

I In certain cases, the City retains risks up to the individual policy deductible amounts and for losses in
excess of any amounts not provided by the excess liability insurance coverage. Settled claims have not

i exceeded the commercial limits in any of the past three fiscal years.
During 2003, the City continued to participate in the KERIT for workers' compensation coverage. The

i trust provides loss control services to all member entities. The City has an internal Safety committeecomprised of representatives from all departments. The committee reviews accidents, discusses safety

issues and implements organizational-wide safety programs.

I Independent Audit - Kansas Statutes Annotated 75-1122 require an annual audit of the books of

account, financial records and transactions of all administration departments of the City by independent

I certified public accountants selected by the City Council. The City has complied with this requirement,and the auditors' opinion has been included in this report.

I Certificates of Achievement. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the UnitedStates and Canada awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
City for the CAFR for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The City has been the recipient of this

I award since 1997.
• 7
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/n order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable i

and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy

both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate is valid for Ia period of one year. We believe our 2003 report continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement

Program requirements, and we will submit this report to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another

certificate. I

Acknowledgments -The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without

the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department specifically Accounting I
Manager, Marsha Lewis and Senior Accountant, Theresa Lode. We would like to thank the City's audit

firm of Cochran, Head and Company, P.A. of Overland Park, Kansas.

!
In closing we also thank the Mayor and Members of the City Council, for their commitment to planning

and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. I
Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen M. Rogers Scott Lambers

Finance Director City Administrator I

I
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I CH COCnRAN,HEAD & CO., P.A.

I & Co Certified Public Accountants

I IndependentAuditor'sReport

I 10500 Barkley, Suite 108 To the Honorable Mayor andOverlandPark,KS56212 Membersof the CityCouncil(913) 648-4272
• (913) 648-4276 FAX City of Leawood, Kansas

I We have audited the basic financial statements of the governmental
accompanying

activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Leawood, Kansas as of and for the year ended

I December 31, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statementsas listed in the accompanying table of contents. These basic financial statements are
the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these basic financial statements based on our audit.

I We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in

I Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform theaudit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also

I includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made bymanagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

I In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

I OtherOffices information of the City of Leawood, Kansas, as of December 31, 2003, and therespective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for
10034NWA,.ba..do,D, the year ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

I Kans.s City, MO 64153 United States of America.
(816) 880-0006

(emsao-_.FAX In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report
dated March 26, 2004 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial

i 3_17No,t_O,kTr_._,.y reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
Kansas City, MO 64116

(816)453-7014 contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
(816)453-7016FAX accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction

i with this report in considering the results of our audit.
Westowne Commercial Center

11;'0W.152HWY.,Suit,_4 Management's Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information
ube_,.or_0s8 as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial

I (s161792-Io2o statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental(81e)_92-_926FAX Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of1333 Meadowlark Lane

I 6,.,,,C_ty,KS,m62 measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,(913)z67-,.33 we did not audit this informationand express noopinion on it.
(913) 267-0616 FAX

I 713 PCA Road, P.O. BOX 1043
Warrerlsburg, MO 64093

{660) 747-9129

(660)747-9490 FAX

I
I
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that Icollectively comprise the City of Leawood, Kansas' basic financial statements. The other
supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Leawood, Kansas.

Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic Ifinancial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures I
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on

them. I

March26, 2004 ____ _ ,,_ (_t I

" I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
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City of Leawood, Kansas

i Management's Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

I This discussion and analysis of the City of Leawood's financial performance provides an overview
of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. We encourage

I readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the accompanyingtransmittal letter, the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial
statements.

I Financial Highlights

• The assets of the City of Leawood exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by

I $247,885,991.
• The City's total net assets increased by $16,512,717, primarily due to the completion of

projects and donations of capital assets from developers and revenue recognized from the

I special benefit assessment from the Plaza Pointe improvement district at 135th& Roe, and fromthe Price Chopper district, which created a brand new reverse frontage road from Mission to
State line called 133rdStreet.

I • As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Leawood's governmental funds reportedcombined ending fund balances of $19,059,349, an increase of $1,454,880 in comparison with
the prior year. The primary reasons for this increase are the State's enforcement effort of the

I city/county local use tax, totaling and increase of $676,000, along with heightened buildingactivities generating an additional $625,000. Operating expenditures were also lower due to
careful review of expenditures during the year.

I * The City completed an advance refunding of the 1996 Public Commission Bonds for theacquisition of City Hall. This refunding reduced the debt service payments over the next nine
years by $248,100 and obtained an economic gain of $242,110.

i • During the fiscal year, I-Lan Park project was completed and dedicated on October 26, 2003. I-Lan Park is dedicated to our City Sister from I-Lan Taiwan. Several delegates from I-Lan
attended the dedication.

I Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Leawood using

I the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

I The Government-Wide Financial Statements present the financial picture of the City from the
economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. The statements

I present governmental activities and business-type activities separately. These statements includecertain infrastructure as well as all known liabilities (including long-term debt). Add.itionally,
certain eliminations have occurred as prescribed by the statement in regards to inter-fund activity,

i payables and receivables.
The Statements of Net Assets and Activities report the City's net assets and the resulting changes.
Net assets are the difference between assets and liabilities, which is one way to measure the City's

I financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets areone indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors to
consider are changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads.

I
12

I
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The Statement of Activities distinguishes the City's functions that are principally supported by i
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are |
intended to recover all or a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). I

Required Components of Annual Financial Report ]]

Figure I m

I n
Management's Basic

I

Discussion and Financial II

Analysis Statements I

f n
Government-Wide Fund Notes to the

am

Financial Financial Basic I

Statements Statements Financial Statements I

Summary • Detail I

Basic Financial Statements Ill

The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government
Wide-Financial Statements. The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide II

the reader with a broad overview of the City's finances, similar in format to a financial statement of •
a private-sector business. The Government-Wide Statements provide short and long-term
information about the City's financial status as a whole.

I

The next statements (Exhibits C through H) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements R
focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City's government. These statements provide
more detail than the Government-Wide Statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial i
Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the proprietary fund statements; and (3) the
fiduciary fund statement.

I
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The next section of the basic financial statements is the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

I The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in thosestatements. The Notes to the Financial Statements are on pages 34-58 of this report.

I After the notes, required and other information is provided to show details about the City'sindividual funds. These reports include certain required supplementary information concerning
budgetary comparison schedules for the genera/fund and schedules and disclosure of the modified
approach for the reporting the City's infrastructure. Required supplementary information can be

I found on pages 59-62 of this report.

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported in this category,

I including General Government, Public Safety, Public Works, and Parks and Recreation. Propertyand sales taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees, and state and federal grants finance these
activities.

m

l Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all or most of the cost of
services it provides. Ironhorse Golf Course services are reported in this activity.

I Fund Financial Statements

I The City uses three types of funds to manage its resources: governmental funds, proprietary fundsand fiduciary funds. A fund is a fiscal entity with a set of self-balancing accounts recording
financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities and balances, and the

i changes therein. These accounting entities are separated for the purpose of carrying on specificactivities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with regulations, restrictions or limitations.

i Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds,which focus on how money flows into and out of those fimds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted

I to cash. The Govemmental Fund Statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City'sgeneral government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near

I future to finance the City's programs. The differences of net assets in the Governmental FundFinancial Statement to that reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements are explained in
the reconciliation schedule following each Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

I Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides to cover the cost
of operations, these activities are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are

i reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and theStatement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City's enterprise
fund is the same as the business-type activities reported in the government-wide statements but

i provides more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.
Fiduciary Fund - The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Leawood Employee Giving Fund.
The fund captures these monies and a special committee of employees provides for the

I expenditures of monies when needed.

I
I
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

Net Assets- figure 2 I
II

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities I200...33 200..._.2.2 200......._3 200__...22

Current and other assets $ 42,452,953 $ 36,867,656 $ 143,168 $ 191,136 I
Long-term receivables 6,984,275 3,637,155

Internal balances 1,847,701 1,847,701 (1,847,701) (1,847,701)

Capital assets, net 268,061,442 255,492,119 7,617,148 7,672,209 !
Total assets 319,346,371 297,844,631 5,912,615 6,015,644 i

28,890,568 24,157,873 524,734 516,747 iOther liabilities

Long-term debt 43,474,853 43,097,218 4,482,840 4,715,163
Ill

Total liabilities 72,365,421 67,255,091 5,007,574 5,231,910 i
g

Net assets:

Invesmaent in capital assets,
net of related debt 221,394,614 209,856,264 2,725,452 2,553,113 II

Restricted 3,104,504 2,503,309

Unrestricted (deficit) 22,481,832 18,229,967 (1,820,411) (1,769,379) I
Total net assets $ 246,980,950 $ 230,589,540 $ 905,041 $ 783,734

Net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The I
City's net assets increased by $16,512,717 or 7.14% for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

1

Current and other assets - Cash increased due to an increase in temporary note borrowing and I
revenues exceeding expenses. Current and other assets also increased due to increases in property

and sales tax receivables. II
il

Long-term receivables in 2003 increased largely due to two special benefit district projects that
were bonded in September. Since the payments of the bonds are on an'annual basis the receivable i

increased significantly from 2002. I

Internal balances remain unchanged. These are funds that have been loaned to Ironhorse Golf

Course, but are not anticipated to be repaid to the General Government until the long-term debt for R
the golf course is retired in 2015. I

Capital assets, which had the largest increase, is a result of donated infrastructure assets from m
developers as well as capital project construction by the City during the year

Other liabilities increased because temporary note borrowing increased by $3,500,000. The •
increase in the mill levy in 2003 for the 2004 budget is higher than the 2002 mill levy by 2.25 II
mills, which generated an increase of $1,774,274 to property tax receivables in deferred revenues.

Long-term debt increased slightly in 2003. More information on this can be found on page 22 of ithis document.
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Invested in Capital, net of related debt represents the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. land,

I buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding thatwas issued to acquire those items. Capital assets include all assets, still in use, acquired from 1948
through December 31, 2003. The one exception is the City's storm water system, which will be

I available for reporting in 2006.
Restricted net assets total $3,104,504 and represent assets with constraints placed on their use by

i either external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of othergovernments, or law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net
assets, of $20,661,421, consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

I Government-Wide Financial Statements

Statement of Activities - figure 3

I Governmental
Activities Activities

200....__3 200_..._2 200.___3 200.....__2

I Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services $5,431,150 $5,687,884 $2,038,317 $2,187,859

I Operating grants and 613 ,345 2,292,055
contributions

Capital grants and contributions 12,818,493 8,220,560

General revenues:

I Property taxes 12,686,851 10,681,728
Sales tax 9,749,898 8,294,646

Franchise tax 2,292,152 2.341.374

I 1,038,942 1,000.086
Other taxes

Grants and eontn'bufons not

restricted m specific programs 978,629 2,369,464

I earnings 438,926 616,654 937 7,160
Unrestricted investment

Other 166.542 768_918 131 114 26.699

Total revenues 46,214,928 42,276,369 2,170,368 2,221,718

!
Expenses:

General government 4,178,147 3,739,052

I Public safety 1I
9,853,624 9,067,4

Public works 10,153,561 13,464,714

Parks and recreation 3,065,427 2,077,813

I 1,971,866 1,929,303
Golf course expenses

Interest on long-term debt 2 407 122 2 476 066 242832 260.558

Total expenses 29,657,881 30,825,056 2,214,698 2,189,861

i Increase (decrease) in net assets,

before transfers 16,557,047 11.451,313 (44,330) 31,857

I Transfers _
Change in net assets after transfers 16,391,410 11,451,313 121.307 31,857

I Net assets, as of January 1, as restated _ 219138227 783734 31857

Net assets. December 31 _ _ $ 905._1 $783.734

!
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The City's total revenues in 2003 were $48,385,296 and expenses were $31,872,579. This total of
Government activities and Business-Type activities are presented in a combined fashion as a result 11

of GASB 34. I

The following graph shows the composition of 2003 governmental activities,

I
2003 Revenues by Source I

II'

Franchise Taxes
Sales Taxes 5% Other Taxes Unrestricted IIi

22% 2% Investment Earnings I1%

Charges for Services

12% IGrants &
Contributions

1%

28% I

Capital Grants &

Contributions29% i

Governmental revenues totaled $46,214,928 for charges for services, operating and capital grants, •
general revenues, investments and others. Ii

Several of the revenue and expense categories fluctuated between 2003 and 2002. Highlights
include the following:

Revenues I

• Charges for services include Municipal Court revenue reached an all time high of m
$1,685,000, up 3.0% over the previous year. Continued emphasis of traffic enforcement •
by the Police Department Traffic Division resulted in this increase. In addition, building

m

permit revenue was up $105,502, totaling $1,392,901. Commercial permits increased to 16

permits from 8 in 2002, while residential permits decreased to 509 from 524 the previous B
year. Commercial permits are generally higher than residential, which explains the increase
in revenues.

* Operating grants were down in 2003 because in 2002 the City had a major ice storm, which i
resulted in State and Federal recovery grants of $1,261,075.

• Capital grants and contributions represent $4,462,055 in improvements to be paid by the
developers in the form of special assessments, $2,262,420 in funds from other i
governments and $6,094,01g in donated infrastructure from community developers. This
figure can vary from year to year depending on how many projects were funded in this

manner and what the project was. •
0

• Property taxes increased due to a 6.4% increase in assessed valuation from 2002. In 2003 II
total collections equaled $11,374,397 with a collection rate of 98.2%.

• Sales and use tax revenue increased from $8,294,545 to $9,749,898 a dramatic increase of m
17.5% over 2002. Two reasons account for this change. The primary reason is tax |
collections from a new .25% local option sales tax. This tax was approved on August 6,
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2002 by voters in Johnson County, and is a three-year tax. 2003 was the first year of

I collections and it totaled $682,703. Proceeds from the tax are to be distributed to theCounty and the underlying cities, with the County's share being used to fund grants to its
public school districts. There has been a lawsuit filed on this tax, and it is anticipated to be

l resolved later this year. The second reason for the increase was in the area of use tax.Effective July 1, 2003, the state passed legislation to enforce the collection of local use tax
on out of state purchases. In addition, Kansas joined twenty-four other states in the

l streamlined sales-tax initiative to collect sales tax from Interact sales. As a result of thesechanges, Leawood collected an additional $646,338 in use tax during the second half of the
year.

i • Franchise Taxes decreased approximately $49,000. This decrease was primarily due tochanges in the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) ruling that cities couldn't

collect franchise fees on Internet services provided by cable companies.
• Interest earnings for 2003 decreased by 28.82% to $438,926. Extremely low interest rates

I during 2003 resulted in this decrease.

I Government activities expenses totaled $29,657,881 for the general government, public safety,
public works, parks and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. All transfers between funds

I have been eliminated. In addition, the general governmental funds:

• Recognized depreciation expense of $5,966,415.

I • Decreased expenditures for principal payments of $7,410,292.• Reduced current year capital expenses by capitalizing $11,441,719 in assets.
• Recognized other miscellaneous accrual expenses and reclassifications.

I
The following chart compares the governmental net cost of services for 2002 and 2003.

i
Net Cost of Services II2003

I EQ200215,000,000

l 10,000,000

5,000,000_m1
O

Q

I o
(5,000,000) interest onGeneral Public Public Parks & Long-Term

Government Safety Works Recreation Debt Total
(I01000,000)

The total cost of services for 2003 was $29,657,881; however the portion of these services
covered by the City's taxpayers was only $10,794,893. The City funded the majority of this cost

I
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with property taxes and sales taxes. The remaining $18,862,988 was funded by users directly

benefiting from the services or by other organizations through grants and contributions. Because •
the City received so much donated and developer financed infrastructure, the Public Works |
division ended 2003 with a negative cost because this offset all of their other expenditures.

Business-type Activities. i

The City of Leawood's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the I

government-wide statements but in more detail. The operations of the golf course are contracted •
with ORION Management Solutions, Inc., an independent third party. This was the third year of a i

three-year contract with ORION.

• The City's Business-type activity, Ironhorse Golf Course, had an increase in net assets of B
$121,307, for a year-end total of $905,041, which is part of the City's total net assets of

$247,885,991. im
• Golf Course charges for services in 2003 were $2,038,317 as compared to $2,187,859 in 2002.

Wet weather in the fall, as well as the slow down in the economy and increased competition for I
the golfer's dollar in the Kansas City area has contributed to this reduction.

• Golf Course operating expenses for the year totaled $1,971,866. This was a 2.2% increase from •
the previous years operating expenses of $1,929,303. The increase was primarily in |
depreciation expense.

• Total net assets of Ironhorse Golf Course at the end of the fiscal year totaled $905,041 an i
increase of $121,307. Included in this total is a transfer from the General Fund of $165,637.

i

Without considering this transfer, net assets would have decreased by $44,330. H
II

Analysis of the Fund Financial Statements II

As noted earlier, the City of Leawood uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance •
with finance-related legal requirements.

i

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Leawood's governmental funds is to provide i
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is

, useful in assessing the City of Leawood's financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund I
balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end
of the fiscal year.

General Fund. The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Leawood. At the end of I

i

the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the General Fund was $10,847,154 an increase of

$1,616,404 over the beginning balance of $9,230,750. The City evaluated the collectibility of its m
long-term accounts receivables from/ronhorse Golf Course, a City owned proprietary fund, and as g
a matter of prudence has placed a reserve against them. Although not legally restricted, the City
has not considered these receivables, totaling $l,043,082 to be available for meeting budgetary

requirements in 2003, or anytime in the near future. We consider this reservation a matter of fiscal •
management. i

Debt Service Fund. The balance of $2,912,003 was up $422,131 from last year. This balance •
represents 55.4% of the 2003 annual debt service payments. II

!
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Capital Projects. The fund balance in the City's Major Capital Project Fund resulted in a deficit of

I ($1,738,535). The deficit was a result of recording payables and expenses for projects in progressat December 31, 2003.

I As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Leawood's governmental funds reportedcombined ending fund balances of $19,059,349, an increase of $1,454,880 in comparison with the
prior year. The increase in governmental funds was a result of an increase in City and county use-
taxes, building permits, and property taxes. In addition, operating expenditures were lower in 2003

I due to conservative fiscal well the of fewer
spending as completionas capital projects costs.

Proprietary Funds. The City's Golf Course, Ironhorse, is the City's only enterprise fund and is

I described under Business-type Activity.

I General Fund Budgetary HighlightsDuring the fiscal year, the City did not formally amend its budget. On a budgetary basis, which
can be found in the Required Supplementary Information on schedules 1 and 2, the revenues and

I other sources, over expenditures and encumbrances resulted in an excess of $1,707,352. Aspreviously discussed, increases in the area of fines and costs, county and city use tax and building
permits increased revenues over the approved budget by $579,430• Expenditures were significantly

i less than what was budgeted. In the fall of 2002, the State unexpectedly cut all cities' budgets withthe elimination of demand transfers. Leawood's share was approximately $650,000. When that
happened the City Administrator along with the Governing Body decided to hold back on spending
initiatives and make some cut backs in 2003, in the event the State legislation eliminated other

I demand transfers. As result of those lower than
a actions, spending was considerably initially

budgeted. Over $934,000 in wages and benefits was not spent that had been budgeted. Hiring was
delayed and raises were reduced. Some newly budgeted positions were allowed to start later in the

i fiscal year, while others were delayed until 2004. Some operating costs were also affected by theseactions, although all essential needs were met. Another large reduction in spending occurred in the
parks department because in the delay in construction of I-Lan and IRONWOODS parks. Over

I $200,000 in operating costs was not spent because of this. Also operating insurance deductibleswere raised to obtain greater savings in actual premium dollars spent. The payment for legal
services was reduced by $100,000, because no major outside legal counsel was needed in 2003. All

I in all operating expenses were $2,205,715 lower than initially expected.

i Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets. The amount invested in capital assets for the City at December 31, 2003, is
$275,678,589, net of accumulated depreciation. This amount includes all infrastructure assets

I acquired during 2003, as well streetlights, traffic and and
as signals land/right-of-way, bridges

streets, existing at and acquired subsequent to 1948 and still in use. The City has recorded all
retroactive assets, with the exception of storm water sewer systems. We anticipate that this will not

I be completed until 2006. The following chart breaks down the City's capital asset balance into the• various categories of assets.

I
I
i
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City of Leawood's Capital Assets

(Net of depreciation)

Figure 4 i

G overnm ental B usiness-type

Aetivities Activities Total •
2003 2003 2003 i

Land/Right of Way $ 83,434,803 $ 1,582,576 $ 85,017,379 •

Buildings and Improvements 18,521,784 5,500,952 24,022,736

Machinery and equipment 1,876,478 5[ 1,843 2,388,321

Infrastructure 146,827,278 146,827,278 a_

Vehicles and motorized i
equipment 2,332,318 21,777 2,354,095

Construction in progress 15,068,780 15,068,780

$ 268,061,441 $ 7,617,148 $ 275,678,589 I
Total

The City has elected to use the "Modified Approach" as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for i
infrastructure reporting for its streetlights and traffic signals. The City manages the eligible

infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system with characteristics of (1) an up-to- •
date inventory; (2) perform condition assessments and summarize the results using a measurement
scale; and (3) estimate annual amounts to maintain and preserve at the established condition

assessment level. I
Under GASB 34, eligible infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated under the

following requirements: I
The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved approximately
at or above the established and disclosed condition assessment level. It is the City's policy to m
maintain streetlights and traffic signals at least at 85% of their normal operating mode. Street •
lights and traffic signals are often out of service for the following factors: (1) life of lamp light; (2)
accidents by vehicles or contractors who excavate in the City's Right of Ways; (3) weather, such as

high winds, rain, snow and ice; and (4) vandalism. During 2003, the City contracted with an B
outside service provider to perform inspections. The City also relies on citizens to report streetlight
and traffic signal outages or malfunctions. The provider performs a monthly visual inspection on

the streetlights and traffic signals and reports to the City Engineer. The City's policy is to •
repair/replace any outages or malfunctions within 48 hours. The service provider's last three

inspection reports show the following condition assessments: October - 99.7%; November

- 99.5%; December - 99.7%. I
U

All other assets and infrastructure are depreciated on a straight-line basis.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions and disposals: I

* The City received $6,094,017 in donated infrastructure assets from developers. I
• Construction in progress consists of $15,068,780 in governmental-type activities for Park

projects, Fire Station #2 remodeling, as well as for street, storm water, and bridge

construction projects, i
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• The City retroactively added $117,253,200, net of accumulated depreciation of

i $42,277,786, in streets and streetlight infrastructure to capital assets, which restated the2003 beginning balance.

i Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 1 Item D. and Note 3 ItemF. to the Basic Financial Statements.

I Long-term Debt. As of December 31, 2003, the City of Leawood had total bonded debtoutstanding of $51,000,000. Of this, $48,165,000 in debt is backed by the full faith and credit of
the City. The remainder of $2,835,000 represents revenue bonds secured solely by a lease
agreement from the City of Leawood to the Public Building Commission.

I City of Leawood's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

I (In thousands)
Figure 5

I
A,cfi.vifics Activities Total

I 2003 2002 2003 20_ 2003 2002

Cetm_obligalionlxaxls $ 43,523 $ 41,986 $ 4,642 $ 4,934 $ 48,165 $ 46,920

I of Participation 200 200
Certificates

P,emmelxrds 2,835 3,045 $ 2,835 $ 3,045

I Tom/ $ 46,358 $ 45,231 $ 4,642 $ 4,934 $ 51,000 $ 50,165

i
I The City of Leawood maintained its AAI bond rating from Moody's Investor Service for the 10Bconsecutive year. This bond rating is a clear indication of the sound financial condition of the City

of Leawood. This achievement is a primary factor in keeping interest costs low on the City's

I outstanding debt.
• The City of Leawood's general obligation and revenue bond debt increased by $1,327,500 or

i 2.94% during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this increase was the issuance of bondsfor the construction of Roe Ave-135 thto 137thStreets, Lee Blvd, and 13Yd - Mission to State

Line, which almost offset the scheduled retirements of existing debt made in 2003.

Kansas statutes limit the amount of general debt that unit of
obligation a government can issue to

thirty percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within the City's boundaries.
The legal debt margin for City of Leawood is $176,694,980. The City has $1,050,000 in bonds

I authorized but un-issued at December 31, 2003.

Additional information regarding the City of Leawood's long-term debt can be found in Note 3

I Item I. beginning on page 50 of this report.

I
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year I
2004 budget. For the 2004 budget the Governing Body approved a mill levy increase of 2.25 mills
for City parks. This mill levy was explained to the voter's at the time of the referendum in 1998

and is needed to cover the debt for $12.5 million in parks improvements made since 2000. The ICity Staff was also directed to refund any outstanding debt in order to benefit from record low
interest rates. That was accomplished early in 2004, and saved the City $442,000 in debt service

payments over the next ten years. In the fall of 2002, the State eliminated approximately $650,000 Iin demand transfers to the City.

Requests for Information I

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in Ithis area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for
additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, City of Leawood, 4800 Town

Center, Leawood, KS 66211. I

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
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Exhibit A

I of Leawood, KansasCity
Statement of Net Assets

i December 31, 2003
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

I Activities Activities TotalAssets
Pooled cash and investments $ 28,490,349 $ 53,350 $ 28,543,699

i Restricted Assets 205,442 205,442
Receivables - (net of allowance for uncoliecUbles):
Property Tax 8,383,788 8,383,788

I Sales tax 2,022,856 2,022,856Franchise tax 665,411 665,411
Special assessments - current 1,114,935 1,114,935

I Intergovemmental 604,155 604,155Interest 65,516 65,516
Accounts 41,109 41,109

I Inventory and prepaid expenses 33,917 48,709 82,626internal balances 1,847,701 (1,847,701)
Bond Issuance costs, net 866,584 866,584

I Special assessment receivables - noncurrent 6,984,275 6,984,275Capital Assets:
Land and other capital assets, non-deprecial_le 109,407,401 1,582,576 110,989,977

I Other capital assets, net of depreciation 158,654,041 6,034,572 164,688,613Total assets 319,346,371 5,912,615 325,258,986

I LiabilitiesAccounts payable 1,104,843 35,238 1,140,081
Due to employees and others 680,292 15,806 696,098

I Deferred revenue 8,733,889 64,834 8,798,723Temporary notes payable 12,600,000 12,600,000
Accrued interest payable 837,358 837,358

I Municipal court 78,462 78,462Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 4,855,724 408,856 5,264,580

i Due in more than one year 43,474,853 4,482,840 47,957,693Total liabilities 72,365,421 5,007,574 77,372,995

_1 Net AssetsInvested in capital assets, net of related debt 221,394,614 2,725,452 224,120,066
Restricted for:

I Capital projects 990,212 990,212Debt service 2,107,384 2,107,384
Other purposes 6,908 6,908

I Unrestricted (deficit) 22,481,832 (1,820,411 ) 20,661,421Total net assets $ 246,980,950 $ 905,041 $ 247,885,991

I See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Leawood, Kansas Exhibit B
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31,2003

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:

General government $ 4,178,147 $ 2,209,868 $ $ $ (1,968,279) $ $ (1,968,279)
Public safety 9,853.624 99,639 101,868 23.828 (9,628.289) (9.628,289)
Public works 10,153,561 2,132,951 511,477 12,794,665 5,285,532 5,285,532
Parks and recreation 3,065,427 988,692 (2,076,735) (2,076.735)
Interest on long-term debt 2,407,122 (2,407,122) (2,407,122)

Total government activities 29,657,881 5,431,150 613,345 12,818,493 (10,794,893) (10,794,892)

Business-type activities:

Golf Course 2,214,698 2.038,317 (176,381) (176.381)
Total business-type activities 2,214.698 2.038.317 (178,381) (176,381)
Total primary government $31,872.579 $ 7,469,467 $ 613,345 $ 12,818,493 (10,794,893) (176,381) (10,971,274)

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 8,695,788 8,695.788
Property taxes, levied for debt service 3,991,063 3,991,063
Sales taxes 9,749,898 9,749.898
Franchise taxes 2,292,152 2.292,152
Other taxes 1,038.942 1,038,942

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 978,629 978.629
Unrestricted investment earnings 438,926 937 439,863
Miscellaneous 166,542 131,114 297,656

Transfers in (out) (165,837) 165,637
Total general revenue and transfers 27,186,303 297,688 27,483,991

Change in net assets 16,391.410 121,307 16.512.717
Net assets-beginning of year, as restated 230,589,540 783,734 231,373,274
Net assets-end of year $ 246,980,950 $ 905,041 $247,885.991

See accompanying note to the basic financial statements
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Exhibit C

I City of Leawood, Kansas
Balance Sheet

Govemmental Funds. December 31, 2003

i Other Total
General Debt Capital Governmental Governmental

Fund Service Proiecta Funds Funds
Assets:

I Pooled cash and investments $ 8,357,802 $ 2,084,001 $11,096,108 $ 6,952,438 $ 28,490,349Restricted assets 108,162 97,280 205,442
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Property tax 4,267,780 4,116,008 8,383,788

I Sales tax 1,774,967 134,366 113,523 2,022,856Franchise tax 665,411 665,411
Interest 6,707 23,383 20,649 14,777 65,516

Intergovemmental 252,118 113,282 238,755 604,155
Special assessments 8,099,210 8,099,210

Inventory and prepaid expenses 21,894 12,023 33,917

Advance due from other funds 1,043r082 804r619 - 1,847T701

I Totalassets $16,497,923 $ 15,240,503 $11,251,123 $ 7,428,796 $50,418,34_

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 387,416 $ $ 327,358 $ 390,069 $ 1,104,843

' Due to employees and others 680,292 680,292Deferred revenue 4,504,599 12,328,500 16,833,099
Temporary notes payable 12,600,000 12,600,000

i Accrued interest payable 62,300 62,300
Municipal court bonds 78,462 78,462

]eta1 liabilities 5,650,769 12,328,500 12,989,658 390,069 31,358,996

i Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 175,000 122,309 297,309
Inventory and prepaid expenses 21,894 12,023 33,917

II Debt service 2,107,384 _ 2,107,384
I Other puq_oses 97,280 97,280

Advances due from other funds 1,043,082 804,619 1,847,701

Unreserved (deficit) 9,607,178 (1,738,535) 7,868,643

I Unreserved, reported in non-major funds:
Special revenue funds - . 183,656 183,656
Capital projects funds 6_623,459 6_623,459

I Total fund balances (deficit) 10,847,154 2,912,003 (1,738,535) 7,038,7. 27 19,059,349
Total liabilities and fund balances $16,497,923 $ 15,240,503 $ 11,251,123 $ 7,428,796 $ 50,418,345

!
!
!
!
!

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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I
Exhibit C

(continued) I

City of Leawood, Kansas
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

IGovernmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are •
different because:

Ending fund balances - total governmental funds $ 19,059,349 •
m

Governmental funds reportcapital outlays as !
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Net Assets
the cost of those assets is capitalized and shown at cost,
net of accumulated depreciation. This is the amount of
net capital assets reported in the Statement of Net

Assets 268,061,442 I
m

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and are therefore deferred in the im
fund statements. 8,099,210 II

The issuance of long-term debt provides current •
financial resources to governmental funds, while the il
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has any effect on net assets. Also, II
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first •
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is

the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items: W
Bond issuance costs, net 866,584

Accrued interest payable (775,058)
Long-term debt (48,330,577) m

ITotal net assets of governmental activities $ 246,980,950

!
I

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements I
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I
I Exhibit D

City of Leawood, Kansas

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

I Governmental FundsFor the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Other Total

I Debt Capital Governmental Governmental
General Service Projects Funds Funds

Revenues:

i Taxes $15,122,752 $3,991,063 $ $ 519,724 $ 19,633,539
Licenses and permits 2,113,058 318,511 222,711 2,654,280
Intergovernmental 5,245,359 492,225 1,091,703 1,707,683 8,536,970
Charges for services 1,090,801 1,090,801

I Fines and forfeitures 1,686,069 1,686,069
Special Assessments f,076,020 1,078,020
Interest 130,168 73,825 152,439 82,494 438,926

Contributions and others 38_834 15 000 147_177 162,676 363 687

I Total Revenues: 25,427_041 5 650 133 1_709r830 2r695r288 35 482 292
Expenditures:

Current:

i General government 3,928,204 22,966 3,951,170Public Safety 9,136,590 49,285 9,185,875
Public Works 3,954,668 3,954,668
Parks and recreation 2,387,791 t59,403 2,547,194

I Capital Outlay 7,470,457 5,498,342 12,968,799Debt Service:

Principal retirements 313,393 3,522,500 30,000 3,865,893

i Interest and fiscal charges 36T939 1 732 073 238,247 156_601 2r163_860
Total Expenditures 19r757_585 5 254 573 7r708T704 5r916r597 38r637p459

Excess of revenues over

(under)expenditures 5_669,456 395560 (5_998r874) _ (3T155T167)Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 119,300 26,571 4,334,765 4,480,636

I Transfers out (4,172,352) (26,571) (447,350) (4,646,273)Payments to escrow agent to refund bonds , - (3,119,316) (3,119,316)
Proceeds from refunding bonds 2,835,000 2,835,000

Proceeds from borrowing 5_060r000 -- 5r060,000

I Total other financing sources (uses) (4r053_052) 26 571 5_033_429 3 603 099 4r610rO47
Net changes in fund balances 1,616,404 422,131 (965,445) 381,790 1,454,880

i Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of 2 489 872 6 656 937 1
year 9,230T750 (773,090) 7,6O4,469

Fund balances (deficit) at end of year $10,847,154 $2,912,003 $11,738r535 ) $ 7 038,727 $19,059,39

i
!
!

I See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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I
Exhibit D I(continued)

City of Leawood, Kansas

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Ill
and Changes in Fund Balances of I

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 B

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because: II

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,454,880 l

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in I
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over m

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This

is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the B
current period.

Capital outlay f 1,441,720

Depreciation expense (5,966,415) m
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current il
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Amount of donated assets 7,094,016 m

mChange in deferred revenue for tax revenues 3,638,618

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to •
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term !
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and •'
similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is

the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt i
and related items.

Amortization of.issuance costs (46.886)

Interest expense (122,080)
Issuance of long-term debt (7,895,000) !
Payment of long-term debt 6,910,893

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore; are net reported II
as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences (118,358) i
HI

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 16,391,410

!
I

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. I
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I
i Exhibit E

City of Leawood, Kansas
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Fund

December 31,2003
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2002)

i Leawood Public
Golf Course Fund

2003 2002
I Assets:

Current assets:

I Pooled cash and investments $ 53,350 $ 138,325
Receivables - (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 41,109 17,465
Inventory 48,709 35,346

I Total current assets 143,168 191,136

Capital assets:Land 1,582,576 1,582,576
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 6,034,572 6,089,633

I Total capital assets 7,617,148 7,672,209Total assets 7,760,316 7,863,345

I Liabilities:Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 35,238 57,699

I wages 5,806 8, 39
Accrued 1 1

Deferred Revenue 64,834 46,976

I Current portion of general obligation bonds payable 307,700 292,500 ,Current portion of capital lease obligations 101,156 111,433
Total current liabilities 524,734 516,747

I Noncurrent liabilities:

Advances due to other funds 1,847,701 1,847,701

i Capital lease obligations 148,840 73,463General obligation bonds payable 4,334,000 4,641,700
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,330,541 6,562,864

I Total liabilities 6,855,275 1
7,079,61

i Net Assets:Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,725,452 2,553,113
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,820,411 ) (1,769,379)

i Total net assets $ 905,041 $ 783,734

I See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
3O
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I
Exhibit F I

City of Leawood, Kansas

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets - I
Proprietary Fund

For the year ended December 31, 2003

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2002) i

Leawood Public I
Golf Course Fund

2003 2002 I
Operating revenues:

GolfCourse revenue $ 2,038,317 $2,187,859

Totaloperatingrevenues 2,038,317 2,187,859 I

Operating expenses: !Golfcourseexpenses 1,641,807 1,610,813
Depreciationand amortization 330,059 318,490

Total operatingexpenses 1,971,866 1,929,303 I

Operating income 66,451 258,556 I
Nonoperating revenue (expense):

Interestincome 937 7,160 IInterestexpense (242,832) (260,558)
Other income 131,114 26,699

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (110,781) (226,699) I

Transfers in 165,637

I
Change in net assets 121,307 31,857

Net assets at beginning of year 783,734 751,877 i

Net assets at end of year $ 905,041 $ 783,734 I

i
I

See accompanying note to the basic financial statements I31
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I
Exhibit G

I City of Leawood, KansasStatement of Cash Flows - PropdetaryFunds
Forthe Year EndedDecember 31, 2003

(With ComparativeTotals for December31, 2002)

I Leawood Public
Golf Course Fund

2003 2002

I Cash flows from operating activities:
Receiptsfromcustomers $ 2,032,531 $ 2,191,649

I Paymentsto suppliersand contractors (1_650_685) (1,555,907)Net cash providedby operating activities 381,846 635J42

Cash flows from noncapital and

I related financing activities:General fundtransfer 165,637

i Cash flows from capital andrelated financing activities:
Purchasesof capitalassets (19,627) (220,989)
Principal paid on capital debt (499,401) (389,010)

I Interest paid on capital debt (242,831) (260.558)Sale of equipment 128,464 19,120
Net cash (used) by capital
and related financing activities (633,395) (851,437)

I Cash flows from investing activities:
Interestand dividends 937 7r160

Net cash provided by investing activities 937 7_160

I Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (84.975) (208,535)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 138,325 346,860

I Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 53,350 $ 138,325

I Reconciliation of operating incometo net cash provided by operating
activities:

Operating income $ 66r451 $ 266_135

I Adjustments to reconcileoperating incometo net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 330,059 318,490
Loss on sale of equipment 19,279

I Change in operating assets and liabilities:Receivables, net (23,644) (13,137)
Inventories (13,363) 35,866

i Accounts payable and other liabilities (14,794) 19,038Deferred revenue 17_858 9_350
Total adjustments 315_395 369_607

I Net cash provided by operating activities $ 381 846 $ 635_742
Noncash capital and related financing activities:

Capital lease obligation for purchase of capital assets $ 272,000 $ 93,074

I
I See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.32
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I
Exhibit H I

City of Leawood, Kansas

Statement of Assets and Liabilities I
Fiduciary Fund

December 31, 2003 I

I
Agency Fund -

Assets Employee Giving I
Pooled cash and investments $ 1,550

Total Assets $ 1,550 I

Liabilities I

Due to employees $ 1,550 I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements I
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

I The City of Leawood, Kansas became a first class city effective December 31, 1998. The City
previously operated as a second class city. The City operates under the Mayor-Council form of

i government with the addition of a City Administrator. The City covers an area of approximatelyfifteen square miles in northeastern Johnson County, Kansas. The City provides many services to its
estimated 30,045 residents, including law enforcement, fire protection, and recreational facilities.
Educational services are provided by separate governmental entities.

!
The accounting and reporting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP). The Government Standards Accounting Board (GASB) is

I responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements(Statements and Interpretations). The City applies all applicable pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), issued before November 30, 1989, in accounting and reporting

I for its proprietary operations unless these pronouncements conflict with applicable GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) guidance as prescribed by GASB Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other

I Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting."
The more significant accounting and reporting policies established in GAAP and practiced by the City

i are discussed below.
A. Reporting Entity

I These financial statements present the City and its component unit, the Leawood Public Building
Commission (PBC). As defined by GASBS No. 14, component units are legally separate entities that
are included in the City's financial statements because of the significance of their operating or

I financial relationship with the City.

The PBC is a not-for-profit corporation established to acquire assets and construct facilities and

I infrastructure for the benefit of the City by issuance of revenue bonds. The Public Building RevenueBonds are payable from annually appropriated transfers made by the City to the PBC. The Board of
Directors of the PBC is comprised of seven members, who are appointed by the Mayor of the City of

I Leawood and subject to approval of the City Council. The Mayor serves as the CommissionChairperson.

I Although legally separate, the activities of the PBC are included in the Public Building Commission(Special Revenue) Fund as a blended component unit. No separately issued financial statements
are prepared for the PBC.

!
!
!
!
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City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ==

December 31, 2003

B. Basis of Presentation •

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) •
and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major funds). II

Government-wide financial statements I

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City, the
primary government, as a whole, with the exclusion of fiduciary funds. These statements distinguish •
between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.

Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. •

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses and program
revenues for each program of the governmental activities. Expenses are specifically associated with m
a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function I
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipientsof the goods or services offered by the
programs and grants and contributionsthat are restricted to meeting the operationalor capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are II
presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies thE,= w

extent to which each program is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.
III

The City's net assets are reported in three parts--invested in capital assets, net of related debt; •
restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted resources to

finance qualifying activities, I

The government-widefocus is more on the sustainabilityof the City as an entity and the change in

the City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities. •

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed informationabout the City. The focus of governmental fund I
financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is
presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Governmental Funds I

The major governmental funds of the City are described below: I
Genera/Fund

lib

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the City that accounts for all financial I
transactions not accounted for in other funds. The majority of the current operating expenditures of

the City are financed through revenues received by the General Fund. I
Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for resources to be used for the payment of general long- I
term debt principal, interest and related costs.

as |
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I City of Leaweod, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003
Capital Projects Fund

I The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the purchase and/or construction of major capital projects.
These projects are normally financed by temporary notes and/or general obligation bonds.

I Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing organizations and activities that are

I similar to those often found in the private sector. The City's only proprietary fund is the LeawoodPublic Golf Course Fund.

I Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others. The City

I maintains one agency fund related to amounts withheld from employees for charitable purposes.
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

I Government-wide Financial Statements

i The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurementfocus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or

I equal value in include and donations. Revenue fromgiving) exchange, property taxes, grants, grants
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
This is a similar approach to that used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements

I but differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.Therefore, the governmental fund financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations
to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for

I governmental funds.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

I All governmental funds are accounted for using modified accrual basis of accounting and the current
financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting

i period in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in theaccounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

i Revenue Recognition
In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, certain revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available (collectible within the current year o'rwithin two

I months of year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period). This includes investmentearnings and state-levied locally shared taxes (including motor vehicle fees). Reimbursements due
for federally funded projects are accrued as revenue at the time the expenditures are made, or when

I received in advance, deferred until expenditures are made.

!
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II

City of Leawood, Kansas •
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements BB

December 31,2003 II
II

Property taxes and special assessments, though measurable, are not available soon enough in the lib

subsequent year to finance current period obligations. Therefore, property taxes and special •
assessment receivables are recorded and deferred until they become available. III

Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, and miscellaneous •
revenues, are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally no!:
measurable until actually received.

Expenditure Recognition I

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resource,,; •
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the I
related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt, which
have not matured are recognized when paid. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and •
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. I
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account •
for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resource measurement
focus concerns determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and •
management control. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned and their expenses are
recognized when they are incurred.

II

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions I
associated with the pdncipal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as investment •
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. l
Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a B
manner similar to private business or where the City has decided that the determination of revenues I
earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for management accountability. The Leawood
Public Golf Course Fund was established to provide for the payment of costs associated with the BII

acquisition, construction, operation, and maintenance of the Leawood Public Golf Course. Any •
monies received by the City from any source which may be lawfully utilized for such purpose may be m

deposited to the fund established by this ordinance.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements II

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and •
therefore are not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is on net assets. Changes
in net assets and are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The City's fiduciary fund is presented in the fiduciary funds financial statements by type. Since by I
definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (other local governments, private
parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the •
government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. l
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003

I D. Financial Statement Accounts
Estimates

I The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of certain assets, liabilities, revenues, expenditures, expenses, and other

I disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could from those
differ estimates.

Pooled Cash and Investments

I Pooled cash and investments include cash, certificates of deposit, and investment in the State
Municipal Investment Pool and are recorded on the financial statements at fair value, which

I approximates cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

I The City considers demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents.

I Inventories

Inventory included on the City's financial statements is valued at the lower of cost or market, on a

I first-in first-out basis, and consists of fuel, golf merchandise and food and beverage items.

Capital Assets

I Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads/curbs,
bridges, storm drainage systems, etc.) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type

I activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fundstatements, capital assets are charged to expenditures as purchased, and capitalized in the
proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical

I cost if purchased or constructed. Donated assets are recorded at estimated fair value as of the dateof the donation.

i Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more, andan estimated useful life of greater than one year. Additions or improvements and other capital
outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset, or that significantly increase the efficiency
or capacity of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are

I expensed as incurred.

!
!
!
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City of Leawood, Kansas N
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements BB

December 31, 2003

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities •
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided on

the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: I
Assets Years
Buildings/building improvements 20-40 •
Land Improvements 20-40
Machinery & equipment 5-10
Vehicles 5-15 •
Infrastructure - Storm drainage systems 75
Infrastructure - Streets�curbs 40

Infrastructure - Pedestrian bridges 30 •
Infrastructure - Bridges 45 l

One-half year of depreciation is taken in the year the assets are acquired or retired. Gains or losses I

from sales or retirements of capital assets are included in operations of the current period. N

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The m

assets include the street network, storm drainage network, streeUight network, traffic signal network, •
and pedestrian and vehicle bridges and buildings combined with the site amenities such as parking i

and landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its business. Each major infrastructure
network can be divided into subsystems. For example, the street network can be subdivided into n
pavement, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, land, medians, etc. These networks and subsystems are not
delineated in the basic financial statements

me

The City has elected to use the Modified Approach as defined by GASB No. 34 for infrastructure N
reporting of its streetlights and traffic signals. Under GASB No. 34, eligible infrastructure capital

assets are not required to be depreciated under the following requirements: m

The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management system with
the characteristics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2) perform condition assessments and summarize •
the results using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate annual amounts to maintain and preserve at |
the established condition assessment level. The Modified Approach for these two networks entails

the following: U
• Streetlights and Traffic Signals - City owned streetlights and traffic signals will be inspected on a
monthly basis to determine any outages. The City's standard for the streetlight and traffic signals
networks is that 85% of the City's owned streetlights and traffic signals are operating on an annual •
basis. A monthly report will be generated for the City indicating the number of lights that are out. I

The City Engineer will review the monthly report to ensure that the 85% operating standard fs
maintained. Streetlights and traffic signals not owned by the City are not maintained by the City and m
therefore are not included in the City'S capital assets. The City estimates that cost of maintenance of
the streetlight and traffic signal systems at 85% on an annual basis will be $195,000.

!
!
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I City of Leawoed, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003
During 2003, the City implemented the retrospective reporting requirements of GASB 34 for all

I infrastructure capital assets except for the storm drainage system. The City will report the stormdrainage systems' assets within the time frame allowed under GASB 34.

i Capital assets owned by the Leawood Public Golf Course Fund are stated at cost or estimatedhistorical cost. Contributions of capital assets received are recorded at fair value at the time received.
Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset, or that significantly increase the capacity of an asset are capitalized. Depreciation has been

I provided over estimated lives using the straight-line method. The estimated lives
the useful useful

are as follows:
Assets Years

I Buildings 30Golf course improvements 33-50
Equipment 5-10

I The City has elected to set a capitalization threshold for capital assets used for business-type
activities at $500. Items below this threshold are expensed rather than capitalized.

I Compensated Absences

i Under terms of the City's personnel policy, City employees are granted vacation and sick leave invarying amounts, based upon length of service. In the event of termination or separation, an
employee is paid for accumulated vacation up to the equivalent of twenty-four days vacation.

i Employees are not paid for accumulated sick leave upon termination, except for employees hiredbefore January 1, 1984 who were allowed to carry over sick leave benefits accumulated prior to
January 1, 1984. These benefits are payable to the employee upon retirement and are not payable if
the employee is terminated before retirement. Accrued vacation and sick leave is recorded as a

I long-term liability of the City.

Long-Term Liabilities

I The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the

I government-wide or fund financial statements.
All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources is reported as liabilities in the

i government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable, capital leasespayable and accrued compensated absences.

i Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial statements.The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest are
reported as expenditures. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements
as it is in the government-wide statements.

!
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City of Leawood, Kansas •
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements n

December 31,2003

Special Assessments n

Kansas' statutes require projects financed in part by special assessments to be financed through the i
issuance of general obligation bonds of the City and are retired from the Debt Service Fund. Special u

assessments paid prior to the issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue for the appropriate project.
Special assessments received after issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue in the Debt Service i
Fund. Further, state statutes require levying additional general ad valorem property taxes in the Debt
Service Fund to finance delinquent special assessments receivable. Accordingly, special
assessments receivable are accounted for within the Debt Service Fund. Special assessments are •
levied over various periods, and the annual installments are due and payable with annual ad valorem
property taxes. The City may foreclose liens against property benefited by special assessments
when delinquent assessments are two years in arrears. Special assessment taxes levied are a lien •
on the property and are recorded as special assessment receivable in the Debt Service Fund with a l
corresponding amount recorded as deferred revenue.

Interfund Receivables and Payables I

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in n

amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified •
as "due to and from other funds." Short-term interfund loans are reported as "interfund receivables =

and payables." Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and
to other funds." Inten_undreceivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are i
eliminated in the Statement of Net Assets.

Interfund Transfers n
Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as intertund
transfers. For the purpose of the Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual •
governmental funds have been eliminated. =

Equity Classifications i
As noted previously, in the Government-wide statements, equity is classified as net assets and
displayed in three components:

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted U
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of ar_y
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or n
improvement of those assets.

• Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by (1) i
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

,,=

• Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or B
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

!
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 3 l, 2003
Deferred Revenue

I The City has recorded deferred revenue in the General and Debt Service Funds relating to property
taxes not considered available until the following year. Unredeemed gift certificates sold at the golf

i course are also included as deferred revenue in the Golf Course Fund.
Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

I A. Budgetary Control

Kansas' statutesrequire that an annual operatingbudgetbe legally adopted for the General Fund,

I Special Revenue Funds (unless specifically exempted statute), Debt Service Fund, and Enterpriseby
Funds. A legal operating budget is not required for Capital Projects Funds. There is no requirement
to report actual to budget comparisons for the Enterprise Funds.

I The statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual
operating budget:

I 1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1.

I 2. Publication in a local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on thebudget on or before August 5.

3. Public hearing on or before August 15, but at least ten days after publication of notice of

I hearing.

I 4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25.
The annual operating budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, modified
further by the encumbrance method of accounting. Revenues are recognized on the modified

I accrual basis. Expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances.

The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund by

I management. However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of theadopted budget of expenditures of individual funds.

I The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted expenditure budget for afund for previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do
this, a notice of public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At

i least ten days after publication, the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend thebudget at that time. The reported budgetary data represents the approved budget as adopted by the
City Council. During 2003, there were amendments to the budget.

!
!
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City of Leawood, Kansas •
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements BB

December 31, 2003 •

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirement is
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of internal spending limits established IBm

by the Governing Body. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures •
cannot legally exceed the appropriate amount) is at the fund level.

Kansas' statutes prohibit cities from creating indebtedness unless there is money on hand in the II
proper fund and unencumbered by previous commitments with which to pay the indebtedness. The
execution of a contract, or the issuing of a purchase order, automatically encumbers the money in
the fund for the payment of the amount represented by the commitment. It makes no difference that •
the amount may not have to be paid until more monies are in the fund or until the following year. An
exception to this cash basis law is the issuance of debt, in the form of bonds, notes, or warrants,
pursuant to statutory authority, referendum, or by the State Board of Tax Appeals. In the event debt •
is issued, funds need not be on hand for future payments. l

B. Property Taxes II

In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a
revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Taxes are assessed on a lib

calendar year basis, are levied and become a lien on the property on November 1 of each year. The •
County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within the county.

IB

Property owners have the option of paying one half or the full amount of the taxes levied on or before II
December 20 during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or before June 20 of the ensuing
year. State statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from distributing taxes collected in the year levied
prior to January 1 of the ensuing year. Consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, the taxes •
levied during the current year are not due and receivable until the ensuing year. At December 31,
such taxes are recorded as taxes receivable with a corresponding amount recorded as deferred
revenues on the balance sheets of the appropriate funds. It is not practical to apportion delinquent •
taxes held by the County Treasurer at the end of the year and, further, the amount thereof is not
material in relationship to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds I

A. Deposits I
Kansasstatutesauthorizethe City, with certain restrictions,to depositfunds in open accounts,time
deposits,certificate of deposit, repurchase agreements and United States treasury billsand notes,
Statutes also require that collateral pledged must have a fair market value equal to 100% of the •
funds on deposit, less insured amounts and the underlying investments must be assigned for the
benefit of the City. The statutes provide for an exception for peak deposit periods during tax paying
time where, for a period of sixty days, the amount of required collateral can be reduced by one-half.
Collateral securities must be held by the city or an independent third party and must be of the kind
prescribed by state statutes and approved by the State. The City may invest in the State of Kansas
Municipal Investment Pool, which is operated by the State Treasurer and is not an SEC registered •
pool. The Pooled Money Investment Board provides the regulatory oversight for this pool. At
December 31, 2003, the City held no investments in the State Municipal Investment Pool.

!
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003
Cash and investments are pooled. Investment income is allocated to the funds based on the

i respective investment and cash balances.
Deposits--At December 31, 2003, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $28,743,383and

i the bank balance was $29,404,033. The bank balance was covered by federal depository insuranceand securities held by an agent in the City's name. The City's deposits are categorized to give an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at year-end. Category 1 includes deposits that are
insured or collateralized with securities held by the city or its agent in the City's name. Category 2

I includes depos ts co ateral zed w th securities held the the financial institution'sby City or by pledging
trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3 includes uncollateralized deposits or
deposits collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust

I department or agent but not in the City's name. The deposits of $29,404,033 are all consideredCategory 1 deposits at December 31,2003.

I A reconciliation of cash and investments with the Statement of Net Assets is as follows:

Cashon hand $ 5,758

I Carryingamountof deposits 28,743,383
Totalcash and investments $ 28,749,141

I Pooledcash and investments $ 28,543,699

I Restrictedcash 205,442Total pooledcash and investments $ 28,749,141

I B. Property Taxes

I The City's property tax is levied and a lien attaches each November 1 on the assessed value as ofthe prior year January 1 for all property located in the City. Property taxes are due December 20,
following the levy date. The taxes are collected by the County and remitted to the City, generally

I after December 31. The taxes may be paid in full or one-half on or before the due date of December20, with the remaining one-half due on or before June 20 of the following year.

i Assessed values are established by the County Appraiser. The assessed value for property locatedin the City as of January 1, 2002 on which the 2003 levy was based was $531,220,486.

i The City's property tax levies per $1,000 assessed valuation for the year ended December 31, 2003recognized as revenue in 2003 were as follows:

Levy

I (Mills)General Fund $ 14.317
Debt Service Fund 7.503

I $ 21.820

!
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of Leawood, Kansas ICity
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2003

!
Taxes receivable represent property taxes levied on November 1, 2003 for 2004 which have been
recorded as deferred revenue, and delinquent property taxes, City sales taxes, consumers' use tax, II

and franchise taxes which have been recorded as revenues. I

C, Interfund Receivables/Payables

Individual fund receivable/payable balances at December 31, 2003 are as follows: I
Due To

Debt I
Due From General Service Total

Leawood Public I
Golf Course Fund $ 1,043,082 $ 804,619 $ 1,847,701

!
Amounts due from the Leawood Golf Course Fund to the General Fund and Debt Service Fund are
for capital and operating advances. Repayment of the advances is not expected to occur within the •
next year. The City has recorded a reserve to the general fund and debt service fund balances in the I
amount of $1,847,701, to reflect that the amounts due from the Leawood Public Golf Course Funcl
may not be available to meet current obligations. City staff does not anticipate the advances made to II

the Leawood Public Golf Course Fund can be repaid until the existing fund indebtedness is retired in •
September 2015.

II

D. Intergovernmental Revenues I
Intergovernmental Revenues I

Other

General Debt Capital Governmental •
Fund Service _ Funds ]'ota._._l

Inter.qovernmental revenues:
Federal:

Bureau of Justice $ 14,059 2,136 $ 16,195 I
State of Kansas:

Special Liquor tax 182,239 364,478 546,717 I
Gasoline tax 781,485 781,465 •
Kansas Criminal Justice I

Multi-Jurisdictional Grant 109,502 109,502

County: ICounty sales tax 2,986,169 615,301 3,601,470
County consumer's use tax 331,359 67,402 398,761
Motor vehicle tax 840,546 492,225 1,332,771 •
County assisted road system 409,000 301,115 710,115 I
Stormwater Management

Advisory Council 1,039,954 1,039,954 •

$ 5,245,359 $ 492,225 $ 1,091,703 $ 1,707,683 $ 8,536,970 II

!
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 3 l, 2003

I E. Transfers

I A summaryof interfundtransfersby fund type isas follows:
TransfersFrom

I Capital Projects OtherGeneral Projects Governmental
Transfers To Fund Fund Funds Total

I Governmental ActivitiesGeneral Fund $ $ $ 119,300 $ 119,300
Debt Service Fund 26,571 26,571

I Other GovernmentalFunds 4,006,715 328,050 4,334,765
Business-type Activities

I Golf Course Fund 165,637 165,637Total $ 4,172,352 $ 26,571 $ 447,350 $ 4,646,273

I Transfers from/to other funds consisted of the following:
From the General Fund to:

I Public Buildings Commission Fund for debt service expenditures. $ 413,340Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund for capital expenditures. 824,600
Street Improvements Fund for capital expenditures. 2,418,550

I Capital Improvements Fund for capital expenditures. 269,400City Art Fund for capital expenditures. 80,825
Golf Course Fund for operations 165,637

4,172,352

I From Other Governmental
Funds:

From the Special Alcohol Fund to:
General Fund for expenditure reimbursement. 119,300

I From Capital Improvements Fund to:Street Improvements Fund for capital expenditures. 325,000
From Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund to:

I Byrne Grant Fund for expenditure reimbursement. 3,050447,350
From Capital Project Fund to:

I Debt Service Fund for debt service expenditures. 26,571

Total $ 4,646,273

!
!
!

46

!

12-31-2003-53



City of Leawood, Kansas I!
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements m

December 31, 2003

F. Capital Assets •

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2003 was as follows: I

Beginning Ending

Balar_es Increases Decreases Balances 1
Govemrnentalactivities:

Capitalassets not beingdepredated:

Land $ 6,180,513 $ $ $ 6.180,513 •
Infrastructure 84,565,016 3,593,092 88,158,108

Construction in progress 11,950,164 10,409,754 7,291,138 15,068,780.
Total capital assets not being depredated 102,695,693 t4,002,846 7,291,138 109,407,401 •

Capitalassetsbeing depreciated:
Buildingsand improve'nents 22,831,204 599,102 23,430,306

Machineryand equipment 1,548,377 261,872 1,810,249 •
Office equipment 1,866,43,5 88,253 1,954,688 I
Furnitureand fixtures 41,088 41,088
Automobiles 978,293 272,373 34,095 1,216,571
Trucks 3,748,024 170,708 102,148 3,816,584 •

Infrastructure 173,263,018 10,431,720 183,694,738
Total capitalassets being depreciated 204,276,439 11,824,028 136,243 215,964,224_ iim

Less accumulateddepredation for: •
Buildingsand irr_ovements 4,231,522 67"7,000 4,908,5_: B

Machineryand equipment 879,261 133,856 1,013,112'

Officeequipment 699,034 205,069 904,103 m
Furnitureand fixtures 4,109 8,218 12.327'
Automobiles 489,951 174,586 34,095 630,44,11

Trucks 1,851,666 320,877 102,148 2,070,395 •

I_ure 43,324,469 4,446,809 47,771,27_L
Total aocurnulateddepredation 51,480,012 $ 5,966,415 $ 136,243 57,310,184

Total capitalassets being depreciated, net 152,796,427 158,654,040 •
Governmentalactivity capita] asse{s,net $ 255,492,120 $ 268,061,441

Depreciatione_ _ d"_rged to functiof_procjrams o_the I:_imatygovernment as follows: I
I

Generalgovernment $ 200,652

Public safety 663,779 •
Publicworks 4,825,425 II
Parks and recreation 276,559

Total depreciationexpense $ 5,966,415 I

I

I
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City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

l December 3 l, 2003

I Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Business-typeactivities:Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,582,576 $ $ $ 1,582,576

Capital assets being depreciated:

Course improvements 5,703,666
5,703,666

Building 1,426,430 1,426,430
Machinery and equipment 1,004,211 382,531 369,690 1,017,052

Office equipment 23,801 23,801Furniture and fixtures 41,164 41,164
Automobiles 12,347 23,747 36,094

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,211,619 406,278 369,690 8,248,207Less accumulated depreciation for:
Course improvements 1,153,964 170,197 1,324,161

Building 266,316 38,667 304,983Machinery and equipment 628,687 117,048 238,411 507,324
Office equipment 22,824 883 23,707

Furniture and fixtures 37,848 1,295 39,143Automobiles 12,347 1,970 14,317
Total accumulated depreciation 2,121,986 $ 330,060 $ 238,411 2,213,635

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 6,089,633 6,034,572Business-typeactivity capital assets, net $ 7,672,209 $ 7,617,'_48

!
I
!
!
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City of Leawood, Kansas I
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2003 •

G. Capital Projects Authorized

The City has authorized street improvement and building construction projects during the year. The i
following is a summary of capital projects, project authorization amounts and expenditures to date:

i

Total Expenditures I
Project-to-date

Proiect Name Authorized at year-end i

Roe Avenue: 124th to 135th $ 7,691,865 $ 896,653

I-Lan Park 1,050,000 895,825 i
Ironwoods Park 6,050,000 5,671,733 I
State Line: Phase IV 3,680,000 1,534,170

Nail 135th to 143rd 3,884,095 395,803 •
Fire Station #2 1,165,184 1,061,649 i
Public Works Complex 5,906,562 4,916,494

92nd and State Line Traffic Signal 240,081 6,523 •
119th and Mission Intersection 5,029,204 1,363,860
143rd Street 160,000 158,913

151st: Nail to Glenwood 950,000 898,549 •
Roe Avenue: 135th to 137th 1,350,000 996,922
Lee Boulevard: Phase II 1,184,532 1,220,695

133rd Mission to State Line 3,249,000 3,538,969 i
133rd Roe to Mission 1,453,652 1,279,231 II

Roe & Nail Ave, and 137th Street 840,608 102,453

137th and Briar 3,585,984 1,162,618 i
Mn Entry/NalI-N of 137th 1,422,832 R

$ 48,893,599 $ 26,101,060

I
H. Temporary Notes •

Dudng the year, the City issued a seriesof temporarynotes for the purposeof fundingvarious capital
improvementprojects.

Balance Balance i
January 1, December 31,

2003 Additions Retirements 2003 i

Temporary notes $9,100,000 $23,400,000 $19,900,000 $12,600,000 i

At December 31, 2003, temporary notes consisted on the following: I

Maturing October 1, 2004, interest of 2.00% $12,600,000

I
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003

!
I. Long-Term Liabilities

I The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City for the year:

Balance Balance

I 1, December31, AmountDue
January

2003 Increases Decreases 2003 in 2004
Governmentalactivities:

I Generalobligationbondsto bepaidwith:
Tax levies $ 37,037,000 $ 632,345 $ 2,791,700 $ 34,877,645 $ 2,883,845

I Benefitdistrictassessments 4,948,800 4,427,655 730,800 8,645,655 1,028,455RevenueBonds 3,045,000 2,835,000 3,045,000 2,835,000 75,000
Capitalleases 1,518,505 343,393 1,175,112 230,692

i Compensatedabsences* 678,807 515,450 397,092 797,165 637,732
TotalGovernmental

activitydebt $ 47,228,112 $ 8,410,450 $ 7,307,985 $ 48,330,577 $ 4,855,724

I Compensatedabsencestypicallyhavebeenliquidatedin thegeneralfund.
,i

Business-typeactivities:

I Generalobligationbondsto bepaidwith:
Golfcourserevenues $ 4,934,200 $ $ 292,500 $ 4,641,700 $ 307,700

I Capitalleases 184,895 272,000 206,899 249,996 101,156TotalBusiness-type
activitydebt $ 5,119,095 $ 272,000 $ 499,399 $ 4,891,696 $ 408,856

I The detail of debt at December 31, 2003 follows:

I Governmental Activities Debt:

General obligation bonds to be paid with tax levies:

I $3,155,000, Series 1992-A General Obligation Refunding Bonds due inannual installments through September 1, 2005;
interest at 3.40% to 5.80% $ 265,000

I $5,654,700, Series 1996-A General Obligation Refunding Bonds due inannual installments through September 1,2009 2,583,300
$7,265,000, Series 1996-B General Obligation Improvement Bonds due

I in annual installments through September 1, 2010;interest at 3.50% to 5.00% 3,485,000

$6,945,000, Series 1997 General Obligation Improvement Bonds due

I in annual installments through September 1, 2016;
interest at 4.60% to 6.00% 3,800,000

!
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City of Leawood, Kansas I
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements BB

December 31, 2003 I

$5,760,000, Series 1998-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in in

annual installments of $475,000 to $1,000,000 through I
September 1, 2013; interest at 3,65% to 5.50% 3,832,000

$7,529,862, Series 2000 General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in •
annual installments of $340,000 to $465,000 through I
September 1, 2020; interest at 4.625% to 6.00% 6,505,000

$9,300,000, Series 2001-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in •
annual installments of $95,000 to $245,000 through
September 1, 2021; interest at 4.00% to 6.00% 8,725,000

$5,050,000, Series 2002-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in •
annual installments of $25,000 to $375,000 through
September 1, 2023; interest at 2.75% to 4.65% 5,050,000

$632,345, Series 2003-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due •
September 1,2018; interest at 3.55% to 6.79% 632,345

Subtotal 34'8771645 I

General obligation bonds to be paid with benefit district assessments:

$500,000, Series 1996-B General Obligation Improvement Bonds due I
in annual installments through September 1,2010; II

interest at 3.50% to 5.00% 150,000

$6,580,000, Series 1998-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in II
annual installments of $475,000 to $1,000,000 through

m

September 1, 2013; interest at 3.65% to 5.50% 3,508,000 Ill

$780,138, Series 2000 General Obligation improvement Bonds due in •
annual installments of $15,000 to $34,138 through

Ill

September 1, 2020; interest at 4.625% to 6.00% 560,000 m,

$4,427,655, Series 2003-A General Obligation Improvement Bonds due in I
annual installments of $295,000 to $297,655 through

September 1, 2018; interest at 3.578% 4,427,655 •

Subtotal $ 8,645,655

Revenue bonds: I

$2,835,000 2003 Leawood Public Building Commission Bonds due •
in annual installments through September 1, 2012;
interest at 2.00% to 3.00% 2,835,000

Capital leases: I

Lease for park land, due in semiannual •
installments through September 1, 2009;
interest at 6.00% 630,000
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003

I Lease for street sweeper/backhoe due in semi-
annual installments through March 1, 2004;

I interest at 4.40% 19,982Lease for 800 Mhz radio due in semiannual

installments through March 1,2004;

I interest at 4.40% 104,159Lease for fire ladder truck due in annual

installments through September 14, 2008;

I interest at 4.76% 420,971

i Subtotal 1,175,112
Compensated absences 797,165

I Total $ 48.330.577

i Business-type Activity Debt:
Golf Course Enterprise Fund:

I General obligation bonds:

I $5,440,300 1996-A General Obligation Refunding Bonds due inannual installments through September 1, 2015;

interest at 3.50% to 5.00% $ 4,641,700

I Capital Leases:

I Lease for golf carts due in semiannual installmentsthrough May 1, 2004, interest at 3.25% 207,000

I Lease for golf equipment, due in semiannual installmentsthrough March 1, 2004, interest at 4.40% 11,382

I Lease for golf equipment, due in semiannual installments
through September 1, 2004, interest at 3.9% 31,6"14

I Subtotal 249,996

I Total $ 4.891.696

I
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City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2003 •

The annual debt service requirements to amortize general obligation bonds and capital lease

obligations at December 31, 2003 are as follows: •

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds to be paid with tax levies:

Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due n

2004 $ 2,883,845 $ 1,782,260 $ 4,666,105 •
2005 2,921,000 1,484,146 4,405,146
2006 2,886,300 1,347,565 4,232,865

2007 2,813,300 1,212,372 4,025,672 •
2008 2,497,1oo 1,088,246 3,585,346

2009.2013 9,857,100 3,879,114 13,736,214
2014.2018 6,555,000 2,020,030 8,575,030 •
2019.2023 4,465,000 503,464 4,968,464 l

$ 34,877,645 $ 13,317,197 $ 48,194,842 •

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds to be paid with benefit

district assessments: N
Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due

2004 $ 1,028,455 $ 309,112 $ 1,337,567 n
2005 1,025,800 284,169 1,309,969 i

2006 1,025,800 246,592 1,272,392
2007 970,800 208,660 1,179,460 n
2008 970,800 173,541 1,144,341 U

2009-2013 2,119,000 530,466 2,649,466

2014-2018 1,505,000 178,690 1,683,690 N
g

$ 8,645,655 $ 1,931,230 $ 10,576,885
i

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds: N

Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due n

2004 $ 75,000 $ 85,250 $ 160,250 m
2005 340,000 66,700 406,700 U
2006 350,000 59,900 409,900
2007 360,000 52,900 412,900 n

2008 365,000 45,700 410,700 •
2009-2012 1,345,000 88,425 1,433,425 IIg

$ 2,835,000 $ 398,875 $ 3,233,875 I
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City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31, 2003
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for capital leases to be paid with tax levies:

I Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due

i 2004 $ 230,692 $ 60,569 $ 291,2612005 110,195 52,394 162,589
2006 114,012 46,777 160,789
2007 118,012 40,978 158,990

I 22,201 34,989 57,190
2008 1 1
2009 480,000 28,800 508,800

I $ 1,175,112 $ 264,507 $ 1.439,619

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds to be paid with golf course

I revenues:

Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due

I 2004 $ 307,700 $ 224,634 $ 532,334
2005 323,200 211,249 534,449

i 2006 333,900 196,867 530,7672007 350,900 181,674 532,574
2008 367,100 165,182 532,282

i 2009-2013 2,113,900 538,311 2,652,2112014-2015 845,000 60.000 905,000

$ 4,641,700 $ 1,577,917 $ 6,219,617

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for capital leases to be paid with golf course revenues:

I Year Principal Due Interest Due Total Due

2004 $ 101.156 $ 8,018 $ 109,174

2005 60,096 4,904
65,000

2006 88,744 2,924 91,668

I $ 249,996 $ 15,846 $ 265,842

I In 2003, the City issued $2,835,000 of Leawood Public Building Refunding Revenue Bonds with anaverage interest rate of 2.5% to refund $3,045,000 of outstanding Series 1996 Leawood Public
Facility Revenue Series Bonds with an average interest rate of 5.0%. The net proceeds and

I additional funds of $339,170 were deposited in trust with an escrow agent to provide for all futuredebt service payments on the 1996 Series Bonds. As a result, all of the 1996 Bonds are considered
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the City's long-term debt. The City

I completed the refunding to reduce its debt service payments over the next nine years by $248,100and to obtain an economic gain of $242,110.

!
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City of Leawood, Kansas •
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements BIB

December 31, 2003

!
Kansas statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to
thirty percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within the city's boundaries. The lid

legal debt margin for City of Leawood is $176,694,980. i

Subsequent to year end, the City issued $10,360,000 City of Leawood, Kansas General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004-A to refund portions of the Series 1996-A, 1996-B, 1997-A, and 2000- i
A general obligation bonds.

Capital leases i
As discussed above, the City has land and equipment under capital leases in the governmental
activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and various items of golf equipment •
in the Leawood Public Golf Course Fund in the proprietary fund and business-type activities II
statement of net assets. To account for financing leases of governmental activities, the City charges
payments made during the fiscal period as debt service in the governmental fund financial •
statements. In the year that the asset is received, the City records the present value of future lease I
payments as capital outlay expenditure and as an offsetting other-financing source in the
governmental fund financial statements. The present value of payments due in future periods is i

shown as a liability, and the gross amount is recorded as a capital asset, net of accumulated •
amortization, in the government-wide statement of net assets and the proprietary fund financial w

statements of net assets. As of December 31, 2003, the gross amount of capital assets under
capital leases was $1,240,000 in land and $2,249,902 in equipment, net accumulated amortization of I_
$614,473 for governmental activities. The gross amount of capital assets under capital leases of golf
equipment was $489,475, net accumulated amortization of $135,289 for business-type activities.

Note 4: Other Information i

A. Commitments and Contingencies i
i

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description I

The City participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) and the Kansas i

Police and Firemen's Retirement System (KP&F). Both are part of a cost-sharing multiple-employer •
defined benefit pension plan as provided by K,S.A. 74-4901, et seq. KPERS and KP&F provide

mR

retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law
establishes and amends benefit provisions. KPERS and KP&F jointly issue a publicly available II
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for each
system. The report may be obtained by writing to KPERS (611 S. Kansas Avenue, Suite 100,

Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737. I

I
i
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 3 l, 2003
Funding Policy

I K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee contribution rate at 4% of covered salary.
K.S.A. 74-4975 establishes KP&F member-employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The

i employer collects and remits member-employee contributions according to the provisions of Section414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be
determined annually based on the results of an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS and KP&F are
funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a limitation on annual increases in the employer

I contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate established by statute for calendar 2003 isyear
3.07%. The City employer contributions to KPERS for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002,
and 2001 were $171,768, $145,154, and $122,272, respectively, equal to the required contributions

I for each year. The KP&F uniform participating employer rate established for fiscal years beginning in1996 is 9.65%. Employers participating in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for
past service costs, if any, which is determined separately for each participating employer. The City

I contributions to KP&F for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $426,624,$424,398, and $396,477, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

I Supplemental Retirement Programs
The City offers its non KP&F employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with

i Internal Revenue Code Section 457 and/or salary deferral under Section 401(a). Under the plans,the City will match .50 cents on the dollar up to a maximum of 2.5% of the employee's annual salary.
Employees may participate in both plans, but the City will only contribute matching funds to one of
the plans. Contributions to the plans by the City and employees for 2003 were $81,333 and

I $373,652, respectively.

I 2. Operating Leases

The City is committed under leases for office equipment. For accounting purposes, these leases are

I considered to be operating leases. Rental expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2003amounted to $ 52,911. Future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

I 2004 $ 52,9112005 52,911
2006 48,970

I 2007 2,034$ 156,826

!
!
!
!
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City of Leawood, Kansas g
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements i

December 31,2003 H
I

3. Golf Course

The City's golf course is managed by a professional management firm. Under the terms of the •
management contract, each year the City and the firm agree on an operating budget, including
anticipated revenues and expenditures (which include debt service and management fees) required •
to operate the golf course. In the event of a revenue shortfall, the City is obligated to advance
monies for operations. In the event of an excess of revenues over expenditures, the City is to

receive the excess less an agreed-upon contingency amount, g
4. Federal and State Grants

The Cityof Leawood has received financial assistance from various federal and state agencies in the I
form of grants and entitlements. These programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting
authority. Management does not believe that liabilities for reimbursements, if any, will have a a
materially adverse effect upon the financial conditionof the City. l
B. Risk Management I
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of U
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. All potential claims, claims
expenditures, and/or liabilities are reported immediately when it becomes evident that a loss has
occurred or a claim may be made. These reports include an estimate of the claims' costs. []

The City has addressed potential risk by purchasingvarious commercial insurance policies for certain •
insurable causes of loss. These policies cover property including buildings, contents, extra I
expenses, physical damage to vehicles, and contractor's equipment for direct damage due to many

perils including flood and earthquake, n
i

in addition, the City carries insurance for instances in which the City is held to be legally liable for
bodily injury and property damage. These coverage's include general liability, firefighter's liability, •
automobi}e liability,physical damage to vehicles, law enforcement liability, public official's liability,and l
excess liability coverage. These coverage's provide $500,000 limits per occurrence for all claims
capped by the Kansas Tort Claims Act. Liabilities that fall outside the KTCA are insured to an ,In

additional $10 million in excess liability limits with exception of Employment Practices Liability which •
is covered up to $2,000,000. Other miscellaneous coverage purchased includes employee

==

dishonesty, theft of cash/securities, and underground storage tank liability. m
In certain cases, the City retains risks up to the individual policy deductible amounts and for losses in •
excess of any amounts not provided by the excess liability insurance coverage. Settled claims have

not exceeded the commercial limits in any of the past three fiscal years, n

During 2003, the City continued to participate in the Kansas Eastern Region Insurance Trust (KERr-)
for workers' compensation coverage. The trust provides loss control services to all member entities. •
The City has an internal Safety committee comprised of representatives from all departments. The
committee reviews accidents, discusses safety issues and implements organizational-wide safety

programs, i
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I City of Leawood, Kansas
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

I December 31,2003

I C. Prior Period Adjustments and GASB 34 Implementation

I During 2003, the City implemented the retrospective reporting requirements of GASB 34 for allinfrastructure capital assets except for the storm drainage system. Accordingly, beginning capital
assets balances and net assets have been restated by $117,253,200. A detail of this adjustment is

i provided below:

i Net assets as originally reported, December 31, 2002 $113,336,340
Retroactive reporting of infrastructure, net of accumulated

i depreciation of $42,277,786 117,253,200
Net assets as restated, December 31, 2002 $230,589,540

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
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I
City of Leawood, Kansas IRequired Supplementary Information

December 31, 2003

I
Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that

are required by GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. I
Such information includes:

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget i
and Actual - General Fund

• Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - General Fund I

• Comparison of Needed-to-Actual Maintenance/Preservation for Streetlights and

Traffic Signals. i

Budgetary Data I
The City utilizesencumbrances for budgetary reportingpurposes. Encumbrances

relatingto certaincontractualagreements, suppliesand equipment thathave been Iordered but not received are reported in the year the commitment arises for budgetary
reporting purposes. However, for financial reporting purposes, the goods or services are

reported when they are received. I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
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Schedule 1

City of Leawood, Kansas
Scheduleof Revenues, Expenditures,and ChangesinFund Balance- Budgetand Actual

I General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

I Original Final
Bud_let Bud_let Actual

I Revenues:
Taxes $ 14,772,255 $ 14,772,255 $ 15,122,752
Licenses and permits 1,446,000 1,446,000 2,113,058

i Intergovernmental 5,764,748 5,764,748 5,245,359Charges for services 1,186,150 1,186,150 1.090,801
Fines and forfeitures 1,400,100 1,400,100 1,686,069

I Interest 250,000 250,000 130,168Contributions and other 28,358.,,, 28,358 38,834

i Total revenues 24,847,611 24,847,611 25.427,041
Expenditures:

Current:

I General government 4,492,860 4,492,860 3,926,131Public safety 9,985,119 9,985,119 9,330,051
Public works 4,448,493 4,448,493 4,023,382

I Parks and recreation 2,945,880 2,945,880 2,387,073
Total expenditures 21,872,352 21,872,352 19,666,637

I Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 2,975,259
2,975,259 5,760,404

Other financing sources (uses):

I Transfers in 119,300 119,300 119,300Transfers out (8,051,303) (8,051,303) (4,172,352)

I Total other financing sources (uses) (7,932,003) (7,932,003} (4,053,052)

Net changes in fund balances _ $ (4,956,744} 1,707,352

I Fund balanceat beginning of year 9,230,750

i Fund balances, end of year, budget basis 10,938,102
Encumbrances at beginning of year (265,948)
Encumbrances at end of year 175,000

I Fund balances end of year $ 10,847,154

!
!
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I
Schedule 2 I

City of Leawood, Kansas

Schedule of Expenditures - Budget vs. Actual - General Fund

December 31, 2003 I

Original Final 1
Bud_let Budget Actual

General government:

Administration: IPersonal services $ 1,421,350 $ 1,421,350 $ 1,413,946
Contractual services 1,063,660 1,063,660 777,495
Commodities 112,200 112,200 117,205 I

Total administration 2,597,210 2,597,210 2,308,646 1

Planning and development: I
Personal services 461,400 461,400 440,906 !
Contractual services 65,900 65,900 16,987
Commodities 18,300 18,300 8,800 ill

Total planning and development 545,600 545,600 466,693 I

MunicipalCourt:
Personalservices 378,700 378,700 353,807 •
Contractualservices 31,250 31,250 24,580 I
Commodities 28,300 26,300 19,505

Total municipalcourt 436,250 436,250 397,892 I
I

Legal Services:
Personalservices 303,500 303,500 244,823 i
Contractualservices 164,600 164,600 40,719 •
Commodities 2,200 2,200 2,475 l

Total legal services 470,300 470,300 288,017

Information Services: 1
Personal services 374,900 374,900 365,790
Contractual services 46,600 46,600 21,867 •
Commodities 22,000 22,000 77,226 I

Total information services 443,500 443,500 464,883

Total general government 4,492,860 4,492,860 3,926,131 I

(Continued)

!
!
!

6o |

!

12-31-2003-69



I
I Schedule 2(Continued)

City of Leawood,Kansas

I Schedule of Expenditures - Budget vs. Actual - General FundDecember 31,2003

Original Final

I Bud_let Bud_let ActualPublicsafety:
Police:

I Personalservices 4,978,100 4,978,100 4,805,803Contractualservices 567,479 567,479 459,266
Commodities 374,800 374,800 305,149

Debtservice 218,050 218,050 212,900
Totalpolice 6,138,429 6,136,429 5,763,118

Fire:

I Personal services 3,449,750 3,449,750 3,215,968Contractual services 184,140 184,140 135,338
Commodities 106,900 106,900 93,200

I Debt service 96,600 96,600 96,589Total fire 3,837,390 3,837,390 3,541,095

i Civil defense:Contractual services 9,300 9,300 5,838
Total civil defense 9,300 9,300 5,838

I Total public safety 19 19
9,985,1 9,985,1 9,330,051

Publicworks:

I Personal services 2,667,000 2,667,000 2,476,387Contractual services 1,202,150 1,202,150 920,873
Commodities 538,500 538,500 585,279

I Debt service 40,843 40,843 40,843Total public works 4,448,493 . 4,448,493 4,023,382

Parks and recreation:

i 1,689,680 1,689,680 1,472,897
Personal services
Contractual services 768,000 768,000 580,564
Commodities 488,200 488,200 333,612

I Total parks and recreation 2,945,880 2,945,880 2,387,073
Total expenditures $ 21,872,352 $ 21,872,352 $ 19,666,637

I
!
I
!
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I
City of Leawood, Kansas

Comparison of Needed-to-Actual Maintenance/Preservation III
for Streetlights and Traffic Signals.

December 31, 2003 I

The City has elected to use the Modified Approach as defined by GASB 34 for I
infrastructure reporting of its streetlights and traffic signals. Under GASB 34, eligible
infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated under the following

requirements: I

The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using an asset management
system with the characteristics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2) perform condition •
assessments and summarize the results using a measurement scale; and (3) estimate .11
annual amounts to maintain and preserve at the established condition assessment level.

m

The City documents that the eligible infrastructure capital assets are being preserved I
approximately at or above the established and disclosed condition assessment level. It
is the City's policy to maintain streetlights and traffic signals at least at 85% of their •
normal operating mode. Streetlights and traffic signals are often out of service due to
the following factors: (1) life of lamp light; (2) accidents by vehicles or contractors who
excavate in the City's Right of Ways: (3) weather, such as high winds, rain, snow and •
ice; (4) vandalism. During 2003, the City contracted with an outside service provider to I
perform inspections. The provider performs a monthly visual inspection on the
streetlights and traffic signals and reports to the City Engineer. The City also relies on BIB

citizens to report street light and traffic signal outages or malfunctions. The City's policy •
is to repair/replace any outages or malfunction within 48 hours. The service providers
last three inspection reports show the following condition assessments: October 2003 -

99.7%; November 2003 - 99.5%; and December 2003 - 99.7%. I

Schedule of needed-to-actual maintenance/preservation - Streetlights and traffic signals I

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 I
BB

Streetlights and traffic signals

Needed $ 195,000 $163,520 $163,520 $141,000 $124,000 $116,500
Actual 146,755 132,919 110,604 112,835 117,935 104,607

!
!
!
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I
I of Leawood, Kansas

City

Other Non-major Governmental Funds
December 31,2003

I Special Revenue Funds - account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific
purposes.

I Special Alcohol Fund - established to account for one-third of the Alcohol Tax Funds sent to the City quarterly from
the State Treasurer's office, which is computed in compliance with K.S.A. Supp. 79-41A04 et seq., representing tax

i receipts and adjustments processed by the Department of Revenue. For cities over 6,000 populations, this amountis to be credited one-third to the General fund, one-third to a Special Parks and Recreation Fund, and one-third to a
Special Alcohol and Drug Program Fund. These monies are allocated yearly for distribution to agencies involved in
drug and alcohol prevention and/or treatment programs that are approved by the City Council in specified amounts

I on a yearly basis.
Special Parks and Recreation Fund - established to account for one-third of the Alcohol Tax funds that are sent to

i the City quarterly by the State Treasurer's office.
Special Law Enforcement Fund - established to provide a depository for monies forfeited to the City of Leawood
Police Department pursuant to the provisions of K.S.A. 65-4135 and 65-4156 relating to controlled substance

I investigation forfeitures. Expenditures from this fund shall be made only for authorized law enforcement purposesof the City of Leawood Police Department. Monies in the fund shall not be used for normal operating expenses of
the City or its Police Department. Any monies forfeited to the City of Leawood Police Department pursuant to the

i provisions of K.S.A. 1988 Supp. 65-4156, and any subsequent amendments thereto, shall be deposited in this fund.Kansas Byrne Grant Fund - established to account for state grant funds received from the State of Kansas for
criminal justice information system that assists law enforcement, prosecution, courts and corrections organizations.

I Public Buildin,cI Commission Fund - established to acquire assets and construct facilities and infrastructure for the
benefit of the City by issuance of revenue bonds.

I American Revolution Tri-Centennial Fund - established to account for monies donated by the Leawood AmericanRevolution Bicentennial Committee. These monies are to be continually reinvested by the City until the year 2076.
It is intended that this fund then be used for the overall benefit for the citizens of the City on a special American

I Revolution Tri-Centennial event or project, needed community facilities, equipment, or programs.
Druq Abuse Resistance Education (DARE) Fund - this fund was established to receive and expend funds in
support of the DARE program of the City. The program is managed by the City of Leawood Police Department and

I funds are received from donations by residents and schools. The funds are expended only for supplies andprograms sponsored by DARE and conducted in the primary and middle schools of the City.

I Insurance Proceeds- established to account for insurance proceeds received whenever any building or otherstructure is damaged as e result of fire, explosion, or windstorm, where the amount recoverable is in excess of 75%
of the face value of the policy covering the building or structure. In the event that a structure is not properly
repaired, the money in the fund may be used to make the necessary repairs. If the damaged structure is repaired to

I the satisfaction of the City, the money is returned to the insured party.

!
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I
Capital Projects Funds - account for resourcesused for the acquisitionand/or constructionof capital projects n,3t n
beingfinancedby other funds.

Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund - created to finance the acquisition of City equipment. Monies may be •
budgeted and transferred to the fund from any source which may be lawfully utilized for such purposes, including =
equipment use charges on the various departments and agencies of the City.

Street Improvements - established to account for the pay as you go portion of the annual mill and overlay, slurry n
seal and arterial street repairs.

Capital Improvements Fund - established to account for the budgeted transfer of monies from other City funds •
lawfully available for improvement purposes. Monies in this fund may be used to finance, in whole or in part, any =
public improvement need set forth in the adopted capital improvement plan, including the repair, restoration, and
rehabilitation of existing public facilities. Disbursements from such fund may be made for engineering and other.
advance public improvement plans and studies. Reimbursementsmay be made to the fund from bond proceeds, •
special assessments, or state or federal aid available for completed projects.

City A_- established to account for funds used by the Arts Council for the selection and placement of public art on •
City property.

Park Impact Fee Fund - established to account for fees imposed by the City on all new development in South
Leawoodand all fees collected shall be used solely and exclusively for the purpose of acquisitionend development II
of park land and open space made necessary by and serving such new development.

118_hCent Sales Tax Fund - established to account for capital construction of stormwater projects that are not •
funded bythe County'sStormwaterManagementAuthorityCouncil. |
South Leawood Transportation Impact Fee Fund - establishedto accountfor fees imposedon new developmem in
South Leawood for the purpose of assuring that transportation improvements are available and provides adequate •
transportation system capacity to support new development while maintaining levels of transportation service
deemed adequate by the City. The Impact Fee shall be imposed on all new development in South Leawood, except
as may be otherwise provided, and all fees collected shall be utilized solely and exclusively for transportation n
improvements in South Leawood serving such new development. l
Highway K-150 Corridor Impact Fee Fund- established to account for fees imposed on new development in the K-
150 corridor for the purpose of assuring that K-150 highway transportation improvements are available and provides •
adequate transportation system capacity to support new development while maintaining levels of transportation
service on Highway K-150 deemed adequate by the City. The impact fee shall be imposed on all new development
in the K-150 corridor and all fees collected shall be utilized solely and exclusively for transportation improvements in .=

the K-150 corridor servicing such new development, n

Public Art Impact Fee Fund - established by the City for the purpose of acquisition and construction of Public Art. A

Public Art impact fee is imposed by the City on all new commercialdevelopment in Leawood. m

!
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City of Leawood, Kansas

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Governmental Funds
December 31, 2003

Schedule3

Special Public American Drug Abuse

Special Parks and Special Law KS Byrne Building Revolution Resistance Insurance
Assets Alcohol Recreation Enforcement Grant Commission Trl-Centennlal Education Proceeds

Pooled cash and investments $ 16,240 $ 180,930 $ 468 $ $ $ 6,862 $ 18,943 $
Restricted assets

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibtes)
Sales tax

Interest 46

Intergovernmental 45,000 45,000 2,136

Prepaid expenses 12,023

Total assets $ 61,240 $ 225,930 $ 468 $ 2,136 $ 12,023 $ 6,908 $ 18,943 $ -

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities $ 5,780 $ 3,880 $ $ $ $ $ $

Total liabilities 5,780 3.880

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances 122,309

Prepaid expenses 12,023
Other purposes

Unreserved

Special revenue funds 55,460 99,741 468 2.135 6,908 18,943

Capital projects funds
Total fund balance 55,460 222,050 468 2,136 12,023 6,908 18,943

Total liabilities

and fund balances $61,240 $ 225,930 $ 468 $ 2,136 $ 12,023 $ 6,908 $ 18,943 $
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City of Leawood, Kansas

Combining Balance Sheet - Non-major Governmental Funds
December 31. 2003

Schedule 3

(Continued)
Total

Municipal Park llSth Cent Leawood K-150 Other

Equipment Street Capital City Impact Sales Tax Transportation Corridor Public Art Governmental

Assets Reserve Improvements trnprovements Art Fee Fund impact Fee Im_oact Fee Impact Fee Funds

Pooled cash and investments $ 1.673.315 $ 730.751 $ 1.958.871 $ 335.343 $ 205.946 $ 778.600 $ 559.292 $ 378.949 $ 107.928 $ 6.952.438

Restricted assets 97.280 97.280

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible
Sales tax 113.523 113.523

interest 3,110 3,110 1,800 889 4,022 1,800 14,777

Intergovemmental 69,094 77.525 238.755

Prepaid expenses 12,023

Totalassets $ 1,676,425 $ 799,845 $ 2,136,786 $ 335,343 $ 207.746 $ 893,012 $ 563,314 $ 380.749 $ 107,928 $ 7.428.798

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and
accrued liabili6es $ 64,196 $ 184,189 $ 132.114 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 390,069

Total liabilities 64,106 184,189 132.114 390,069

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances 122,309

Prepaid expenses 12,023

Other purposes 97,280 97,280
Unreserved

Special revenue funds 183.658

Capital projects funds 1.612.319 615.656 1.907.392 335,343 207.746 893.012 563.314 380.749 107.928 6.623.459
Total fund balance 1.612.319 615.656 2.004,672 335.343 207.748 893.012 563,314 380.749 107.028 7.038.727

Total liabilities

and fund balances $ 1.676.425 $ 799.845 $ 2.136.786 $ 335.34:3 $ 207.746 $ 893.012 $ 563.314 $ 380.74_ $ 107.92=_====_=8$ 7.428.796
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City of Leawood, Kansas Schedule4
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances o Non-major Governmental Funds
For the year ended December 31,2003

Special Public American Drug Abuse
Special Parks and Special Law KS Byrne Building Revolution Resistance Insurance
Alcohol Recreation Enforcement Grant Commission Tri-Centennial Education Proceeds

Revenues2

Taxes $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Licenses and permits - . .
fntergovemmental 182,239 182,239 2,136
Interest 11 - 5 146 218 18
Contributions and other 1_O00 - 22,948

Total revenues 18.2,250 183,239 5 2,136 146 218.. 22 966

Expenditures:
Current:

General government - . - 22,966
Public safety 44,650 3,050 1,585
Parks and recreation 159.403

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal retirements

Interest and fiscal charges 117r001

Total expenditures 44,650 159T403 3r050 117r001 1,585 22,966

Excess of revenuesover (under) expenditures 137,600 23.836 5 (914) (I17.001) -- 146

Other financingsources (uses):
Transfers in 3,050 413.340
Transfersout (119,300)

Payments to escrowagent to refundbonds (3.119,316)
Proceedsfrom refunding 2,835,000

Total other financingsources (uses) (119,300) 3,050 129,024

Net changes _nfund balances 18,300 23,836 5 2,136 12,023 146 (1,367)

Fundbalances at beginningof year 37,160 198,214 463 6,762 20,310

Fund balances at end of year $ 55,460 $ 222,050 $ 468 $ 2,t 36 $ 12,023 $ 6,908 $ 18,943 $

65

12-31-2003-77



City of Leawood, Kansas Schedule4

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and (Continued)

Changes in Fund Balances - Non-major Governmental Funds
For the year ended December 31. 2003

South Highway Total
Municipal Park llfith Cent Leawood }(-150 Other

Equipment Street Cap]tal City Impact Sales Tax Transportation Corridor Public Art Governmental
Reserve Improvements Improvements Art Fee Fund Impact Fee JJ.L_act Fee Impact Fee Funds

Revenue_;
Taxes $ $ $ $ $ $ 519,724 $ - $ - $ - $ 81g,724
Licenses and permits - - 33,827 150,813 29,07f 222,711
Intergovernmental - 301, t15 1,039,954 .... 1,707,683
Interest 18,257 8,167 24,426 1,462 2,040 5,994 13,994 8,766 990 82,494
Conlribu_ionsand olber f7,100 19,738 101,890 162r676

Total revenues _ 35,357 329,020 rrl66 270_ f 462 2 04(3 5251718 471821 168,579 30,061 2,695,288

ExpendiIurea:
Current:

General government 22,966
Public safety 49,285
Parks and recreafion - 159,403

Capital oubay 1,190,835 2,730,688 1,860,962 10,577 5,280 5,498,342
Debt service:

Pdnc/pal retiremen{s 30,000 30,000
Interest end fisca_charges 39,600 156r601

Tot_t expenditures 1,19(3835 2,730T688 1,560,962 10,577 74,880 _....._...m_. _ 5,918,597

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures _ (2.401,668) (394 692,) _ (72,84_ 625 718 47r82f 166,579 30,061 (3,221,309_

Other financln0 sources (uses):
Transfers _n 824,600 2,743,550 269,400 80,825 - 4,334,765
Transfers _ut (3,059} (325,000) (447,350)

Payments to escrow agent to refund bonds (3,119,318)
Proceeds from refunding 2,835,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 821 550 2,743T550 269t400 80,825 - -- _ _ 3,803r099

Net changes in fund balances (333,928) 341,882 (125,992) 71,710 (72,840) 200,718 47,821 166,579 30,061 381,790

Fund balances at beginning of year 1,946 247 273,774 2,129.964 263r633 280T586 692,294 515,493 214,170 77,867 6,656,937

Fund balances at end of year $ 1,612,319 $ 615,656 $ 2,004,672 $ 335,343 _,_=_,_,__= __$207,746 $ 893,012 $ 563,314 $ 380,749 $ 107,928 $ 7 038,727
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l City of Leawood, Kansas Schedule 5

i Special Alcohol FundSchedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual -
and Changes in Fund Balance

I For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance

I Under
Budget Actual (Over)

I Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 148,300 $ 182,239 $ 33,939

i Interest 50 11 (39)
Total revenues 148,350 182,250 33,900

I Expenditures:

Public safety 44,500 44,650 (150)

I Contingency 7,525 7,525

Total expenditures 52,025 44,650 7,375

I Revenues over (under) expenditures 96,325 137,600 41,275

I Transfers out (119,300) (119,300)

i Net changes in fund balance $ (22,975) 18,300 $ 41,275
Fund balance, beginning of year 37,160

I Fund balance, end of year $ 55,460

I
I
I
I
I 67

I
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I
Schedule 6 I

City of Leawood, Kansas

Special Parks and Recreation Fund ISchedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual -
and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 I
Variance

Under

Budget Actual (Over) I

Revenues: I
Intergovernmental $ 179,962 $ 182,239 $ 2,277
Interest 1,000 (1,000)

Miscellaneous 126,970 1,000 (125,970) I

Total revenues 307,932 183,239 (124,693) I
Expenditures:

Capital outlay 287,431 192,061 95,370 I

Total expenditures 287,431 192,061 95,370

Net changes in fund balance $ 20,50==_==,=,==_1(8,822) $ (29,323), I

Fund balance, beginning of year 198,214 I
Encumbrances, beginning of year (89,651)
Encumbrances, end of year 122,309 1
Fund balance, end of year $ 222,050

1
1
1
1
1
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I City of Leawood, Kansas Schedule 7

i Special Law Enforcement FundSchedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual -
and Changes in Fund Balance

I For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance

I UnderBudget Actual (Over)

I Revenues:
Interest $ $ 5 $ 5

i Miscellaneous
Total revenues 5 5

I Expenditures:
Contingency 464 464

I Net changes in fund balance $ (464) 5 $ 469

I Fund balance, beginning of year 463

Fund balance, end of year $ 468

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I 69
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I
Schedule 8 ICity of Leawood, Kansas

Statementof Changes inAssetsand Liabilities- I
FiduciaryFund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 I

Balance Balance I
Beginning End

Agency Fund - of Year Additions Deductions of Year

Employee Giving I
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments ,,$ 1,832 $ 2,996 $ 3,278 $ 1,550__ I
Liabilities:

Due to employees , $ 1,832 $ 2,996 $ 3,278 _$ 1,550 I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
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Table 1

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

General Governmental Expenditures by Function (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(2) (2)
Parks

Fiscal General Public Public and Capital Debt

Year . Government Safety Works Recreation Outlay Service Total

1994 $ 1,766,910 $ 4,796,134 $ 2,925,251 $ 668,477 $ 7,423,531 $ 2,761,600 $ 20,341,903
1995 2,030,214 5,277,251 3,377,636 1,107,519 14,601,666 3,934,565 30,328,851
1996 1,728,631 5,876,888 3,692,999 1,107,730 13,615,308 4,842,557 30,864,113
1997 2,869,838 6,480,608 3,820,455 1,316,022 11,779,676 5,090,015 31,356,614
1998 3,352,681 6,509,602 4,698,438 1,732,094 3,444,480 5,714,383 25,451,678
1999 3,267,126 6,845,612 5,135,849 1,703,024 3,585,440 6,069,820 26,606,871
2000 3,400,791 7,412,129 5,487,842 1,798,480 7,244,698 6,046,887 31,390,827
2001 3,946,423 8,120,894 6,861,434 2,125,696 11,861,441 6,391,632 39,307,520
2002 3,541,020 9,895,329 9,883,695 2,469,044 13,860,890 6,991,543 46,641,521
2003 3,951,170 9,185,875 3,954,668 2,547,194 12,968,799 6,029,753 38,637,459

(1) Includes governmental activities as shown in the Fund Financial Statements.

(2) For the years 1998 - 2001, the Municipal Court expenditures were assigned from the Public Safety division to
the General Government division.
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Table 2
CITY OF LEAWOOD. KANSAS

General Governmental Revenues by Source (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Licenses Charoes Fines
Fiscal and Inter- for and Special Investment

Year Taxes Permits governmental Services Forfeitures Assessments Earnings Miscellaneous Total

1994 $ 7,980,774 $ 951,860 $ 3,624,913 $ 267,227 $ 397,943 $ 1,381,747 $ 316,190 $ 418,512 $15,339,166
1995 8,415,573 1,046,130 4,523,498 3,756,267 426,920 1,345,038 402,958 483,253 20,399,637
1996 10,192,682 1,076,960 9,564,349 1,055,211 556,202 1,263,398 544,669 671,461 24,924,932
1997 11,595,997 949,609 10,432,267 1,438,829 549,661 1,289,520 822,850 713,831 27,792,564
1998 12,681,417 1,102,360 7,655,835 1,024,927 511,607 1,017,609 954,978 272,071 25,220,804
1999 14,107,298 1,497,901 6,961,401 1,287,452 849,465 1,500,174 827,019 155,889 27,186,599
2000 15,792,474 1,715,790 8,673,871 948,730 1,331,258 1,301,357 1,342,370 220,967 31,326,817
2001 17,303,981 2,502,458 8,260,309 1,031,295 1,092,075 1,318,124 1,114,728 465,662 33,088,632
2002 18,012,526 2,884,530 10,608,104 1,169,993 1,633,358 1,223,716 616,654 842,827 36,991,708
2003 20,316,243 2,659,280 7,854,266 1,085,801 1,686,069 1,078,020 438,926 363,687 35,482,292

(1) Includes governmental activities as shown in the Fund Financial Statements.

Table 2A

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source (1)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

city City
Fiscal Property Sales Franchise Consumers'
Year Tax Tax Tax Use Tax Total

1994 $ 5,I38,932 $ 1,518,114 $ 1,150,383 $ 173345 $ 7,980,774
1995 5,418,152 1,583,637 1,197,551 216233 8,415,573
1996 6,298,332 2,222,010 1,419,801 252 539 10,192,682
1997 6,969,475 2,808,135 1,529,620 288 767 11,595,997
1998 7,340,330 3,374,684 1,619,829 346 574 12,681,417
1999 8,424,989 3,613,566 1,715,571 353 172 14,107,298
2000 9,038,077 4,115,932 2,126,254 512212 15,792,475
2001 9,772,091 4,589,872 2,433,290 508,728 17,303,981
2002 10,68!,729 4,434,337 2,341,374 555,086 18.012,526
2003 11,591,722 5,309,375 2,292,152 1,122,994 20.316,243
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Table 3

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of Delinquent Total Ratio of Outstanding Ratio of

Fiscal Total Current Tax Current Taxes Tax Tax Total Tax Collections Delinquent Delinquent Taxes

Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections To Total Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy

93/94 (1) $ 5,157,803 $ 5,051,816 97.9% $ 82,899 $ 5,134,715 99.6% $ 70,682 1.37%

94/95 5,440,838 5,370,885 98.7% 30,902 5,401,787 99.3% 46,993 0.86%

95/96 6,299,102 6,239,024 99.0% 56,822 6,295,846 99.9% 55,785 0.89%

96/97 6,989,173 6,893,702 98.6% 63,676 6,957,378 99.5% 79,240 1.13%

97/98 7,422,076 7,275,457 98.0% 50,396 7,325,853 98.7% 98,211 1.32%

98/99 8,149,076 8,067,870 99.0% 79,174 8,147,044 100.0% 68,780 0.84%

99/00 9,085,881 8,938,484 98.4% 67,217 9,005,701 99.1% 114,062 1.26%

00/01 9,873,694 9,687,443 98.1% 80,553 9,767,996 98.9% 169,559 1.72%

01/02 10,887,313 10,611,435 97.5% 66,501 10,677,936 98.1% 246,764 2.27%

02/03 11,591,232 11,374,397 98.1% 183,951 11,558,348 99.7% 169,714 1.46%

Information provided by the Johnson County Treasurer's office.

(1) 1993 includes the Special Building Fund which was a levied fund for Leawood in those years.

1999 Delinquent Tax Collections only include Delinquent Real EstateTaxes. Delinquent Personal collections were distributed January 20, 2001.

2000 Delinquent Tax Collections include Delinquent Personal Property from 1999 and 2000 along with Delinquent Real Estate Taxes for 2000.
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Table 4

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value

of All Taxable Tangible Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(1) Ratio of
(1) Assessed (1) (1) Assessed

Assessed Value State Motor/ (1) (1) Value to
Year Ended Value Personal Assessed Recreational Assessed Actual True

December 31_ Real Estate Property Utilities Vehicles Value Valuation Value

Assessment Budget
Year Year

1993 (2) 1994 $ 191,631,619 $ 6,257,360 $4,760,800 $ 38,362 172 $ 241,011,951 $1,735,450,481 13.9%
1994 1995 201,904,69l 6,474,905 5,272,498 41,604 818 255,256,912 1,842,473,025 13.9%
1995 1996 235,515,397 7,057,645 4,848,395 45,370 208 292,791,645 2,136,155,529 13.7%
1996 1997 261,766,856 7,743,940 4,908,010 (3) 48,980 314 323,399,120 2,341,757,812 13.8%
1997 1998 300,942,697 9,763,285 5,463,373 (3) 51,761 195 367,930,550 2,645,460,398 13.9%
1998 1999 331,758,648 10,024,991 5,636,982 (3) 54,460 192 401,880,813 2,913,118,506 13.8%
1999 2000 370,034,534 11,995,333 6,322,011 (3) 55,898 749 444,250,627 3,212,602,950 13.8%
2000 2001 434,198,518 14,069,163 5,757,847 (3) 57,538051 511,563,579 3,763,719,569 13.6%
2001 2002 478,263,332 14,964,257 5,847,070 55,695,102 554,769,761 4,085,823,301 13.6%
2002 2003 508,588,824 16,334,865 6,296,797 57,762,782 588,983,268 4,368,415,305 13.5%

(1) Information provided by the Johnson County Clerk's Office.

(2) Assessed valuaton figures for 1993 were impacted by a constitutional amendment approved by Kansas voters in November 1992.

(3) As a result of legislation passed in 1995, the assessment rate for motor vehicles will be decreased from 30% to 20% over a
five-year period starting January 1, 1996. This change begizming with the 1996/97 valuations impacted motor vehicle valuations for
the City.
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Table 5

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Property Tax Rates
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Value)

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years
/

Unified
Shawnee , Blue Johnson Johnson Total Total

City State Mission Valley County County Johnson Johnson Blue Shawnee

Fiscal Debt Capital of Johnson School School Community Sewer County County Valley Mission

Year General Service Projects Kansas County District District College District _ Park District District

1994 18.541 5.063 1.843 1.500 17.779 54.101 70.031 10.146 6.736 3.443 1,678 136.760 120.830

1995 19.879 5.568 1.500 17.389 62.107 81.151 10.138 6.814 3.608 1.676 147.723 128.679

1996 17.617 7.830 1.500 16.563 61.779 82.639 9.314 6.140 3.419 1.620 146.642 125.782

1997 19,816 5.631 1.500 16.590 56.233 80,430 8.946 6.041 3.478 1.620 144.052 1t9.855

1998 15.884 7.591 1.500 15.305 51,808 74.168 8.540 5.938 3.254 1.512 133.692 111,332

1999 15.894 7.562 1.500 14,345 42.968 69.847 7.746 5.704 3.174 1.437 127.209 100,330

2000 15.209 8.247 1.500 16.112 41.246 65.597 7.184 5.166 3.137 1.451 123,603 99.252

2001 12.346 9.401 1.500 15.676 40.327 65.689 7.646 4.647 2.981 1.322 121.208 95.846

2002 14.102 7,713 1,500 16.333 38.699 64.216 7,743 4.181 2.971 1.382 120.141 94.624

2003 14.317 7.503 1.500 16.221 42.238 68,588 9.428 2,948 1.602 122.107 95.757

Information provided by Johnson County Clerk's office.
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Table.._._._6 I

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS I

Principal Taxpayers I
December 31, 2003

I
2002 Percentage of

Assessed Total Assessed ITaxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Town Center Plaza Shopping Center $ 17,079,376 2.900%

95 West, L.P. Shopping Center 6,724,835 I. 142% I
Academy of Family Physicians Offices 5,817,826 0.988%

, 114 Timberlands, LLC Offices 3,039,801 0.516%

Kansas City Orthopedic Institute Medical Offices 2,932,374 0.498% I
Ranchmart, Inc. Shopping Center 2,928,026 0.497%
Kansas City Power & Light Electric Utility 2,851,707 0.484%

Teachers' Insurance and Annuity Offices/Realty 2,726,001 0.463% I
Entertainment Properties Movie Theater 2,695,201 0.458%
Hallbrook Office Center Offices 2,515,723 0.427%

Total Principal Property Taxpayers $ 49,310r870 8.373% I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
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i Table 7

I CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Special Assessment Billings and Collections

I Last Ten Fiscal Years

I Soecial Soecial
Fiscal Assessment Assessments

I Year Billings Collected1994 $ 1,337,787 $ 1,390,747
1995 1,482,439 1,345,038

I 1996 1,232,812 1,263,398
1997 1,298,744 1,289,520

I 1998 1,048,137 1,017,6091999 1,514,397 1,500,174

2000 1,325,903 1,301,357

I 2001 1,275,870 1,318,1242002 1,254,333 1,223,716

2003 1,006,382 1,078,020

I
I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
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Table 8 I

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS I

Computation of Legal Debt Limitation

December 31, 2003 I

Assessed value, real and personal property, 1988 $ 79,151,382 I
Plus assessed value, motor vehicles, 1988 27_421_310

Total assessed value, 1988 106,572,692 I
Debt limitation percentage for 1989 30.00%

1989 debt limitation $ 31,971,808 I

Assessed value, real and personal property, 1989 $ 172,096,679 IPlus assessed value, motor vehicles, 1989 30,062,921

$ 202,159,600 I
1989 debtlimitation $ 31,971,808

Divided by 1989 total assessed value 202_159_600 I
New debt limitation percentage 15.82%

Assessed value, real and personal property, 2003 $ 531,220,486 I
Plus assessed value, motor vehicles, 2002 57r762J82

Total assessed value, 2003 588,983,268 I
New debt limitation percentage 30.00%

2003 debt limitation $ 176,694,980 I

NOTE: In 1997, the Kansas legislature repealed K.S.A. 79-5037, the statute which had I

governed legal debt limits for municipalities since statewide reappraisal in 1989.

Based on this action, the legal general obligation debt limit for most cities in the I
state, including Leawood, returned to the pre- 1989 limit of 30% of equalized

assessed valuation. Between 1989 and 1997, K.S.A. 79-5037 adjusted the debt limit I
to account for the effect of reappraisal. During this period Leawood's debt limit was

approximately 15.82% of equalized assessed valuation. I

I
I
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Table 9

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt

To Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Ratio of Net Net Bonded
Fiscal Assessed Gross Bonded Less Debt Bonded Bonded Debt to Debt Per

Year Population (1) Valuation Debt Service Fund Debt Assessed Value Capita

1994 22,947 $ 241,011,951 $ 21,930,000 $ 722,755 $ 21,207,245 8.80% $ 924
1995 23,543 255,256,912 19,965,000 853,674 19,111,326 7.49% 812
1996 24,677 292,791,645 26,120,000 1,574,644 24,545,356 8.38% 995

1997 25,486 323,399,120 30,230,000 1,588,869 28,641,131 8.86% 1,124
1998 26,016 367,930,550 39,540,000 1,971,301 37,568,699 10.21% 1,444

1999 27,656 401,880,813 35,675,000 4,545,906 31,129,094 7.75% 1,126
2000 28,256 444,250,627 40,460,000 5,470,459 34,989,541 7.88% 1,238
2001 28,856 511,563,579 45,820,000 5,295,416 40,524,584 7.92% 1,404
2002 29,456 554,769,761 46,920,000 2,489,872 44,430,128 8.01% 1,508
2003 30,045 588,983,268 48,165,000 2,912,003 45,252,997 7.68% 1,506

(1) Information provided by City's Department of Planning and Development.
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Table 10 I

I
CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS I

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
For General Obligation Bonded Debt
to Total Governmental Expenditures I

Last Ten Fiscal Years !

Total Total General Ratio of Debt I
Fiscal Debt Governmental Service to

Year Principal (2) Interest (2) Service (2) Expenditures (1) Expenditures !
1994 $1,620,626 $ 843,951 $ 2,464,577 $ 20,341,903 12.12%

1995 1,857,901 855,708 2,713,609 30,328,851 8.95% I1996 2,100,092 870,671 2,970,763 30,864,113 9.63%
1997 2,48!,671 1,027,250 3,508,921 31,356,614 11.19%

1998 2,835,691 1,070,085 3,905,776 25,451,678 15.35% II999 3,621,000 1,433,808 5,054,808 26,606,871 19.00%
2000 3,269,300 1,347,567 4,616,867 31,390,827 14.71%

2001 3,672,300 1,531,425 5,203,725 39,307,520 13.24% I2002 3,669,600 1,923,764 5,593,364 46,641,521 11.99%
2003 3,522,500 1,732,073 5,254,573 38,637,459 13.60%

I
(1) Includes all Governmental Fund Types - see Table 1. I
(2) General obligation bonds reported in the Enterprise Funds have been excluded.

I
I
I
I
I
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I Table 11

I CITY OF LEAWOOD. KANSAS
General Obligation Bonds - Computation of Direct

I and Overlapping Bonded Debt
December 31, 2003

I
Percentage Amount

I Ao01icable to Aoolicable toName of Net Debt City of City of

Governmental Unit Outstanding Leawood (2) Leawood

I City of Leawood (1) $ 48,165,000 100.00000% $ 48,165,000Johnson County 133,835,000 8.62000% 11,536,577
Shawnee Mission School District

I (U.S.D. 512) 125,745,000 4.50000% 5,658,525(U.S.D. 229) 281,530,000 24.37000% 68,608,861
Fire Distric #2 2,670,000 0.22000% 5,874

I Parks and Recreation 6_350_000 8.62000% 5477370

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 598,295,000 $134r522_207

I
(1) General obligation debt outstanding.

I (2) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in
overlapping unit to valuation of property subject to taxation in reporting

I unit as of January 1, 2003

i
I
I
I
I
I
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Table 12 I

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS I

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years I

Fiscal Per Capita Median Unemployment I

Year Population (1) Income Age Rate (3)

I
1994 22,947 * * 3.3%
1995 23,543 * * 2.9%

1996 24,677 * * 3.0% I
1997 25,486 * * 2.3%

1998 26,016 * * 2.5% I1999 27,656 * * 1.3%
2000 28,256 $ 41,100 41.2 (2) 1.5%

2001 28,856 * * 2.5% I2002 29,456 * * 2.7%
2003 30,045 * * 2.9%

!
• Information is not available. This information is compiled every ten years.

(1) From Table 9. I

(2) Obtained from U. S. Census Bureau. I

(3) Obtained from Kansas Department of Human Resources, for the City of ILeawood. Beginning in 1999, the City of Leawood met the Labor Bureau's
criteria and data was collected specifically as it related to the city proper.

Figures for 1990-1998 included all of Johnson County. I

I
I
I
I
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Table 13

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Property Value and Construction

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Commercial Residential

Construction Construction

Property Value (000's) Number Number

Fiscal Commercial Residential Vacant and Exemption of of

Year (1) (1) Other (1) (1) Total Permits Value Permits Value

1994 $ 83,061 $1,527,778 $ 65,887 $ 58,724 $1,735,450 9 $ 4,312,000 461 $ 75,045,501

1995 81,537 1,618,279 83,128 59,469 1,842,413 21 47,556,963 438 90,983,718

1996 126,882 1,897,083 90,842 69,505 2,184,312 14 11,360,599 423 67,604,775

1997 187,866 2,099,704 97,423 89,417 2,474,410 11 53,284,330 342 99,298,166

1998 214,700 2,338,261 75,470 95,180 2,723,611 8 12,188,680 402 95,955,530

1999 273,325 2,550,258 66,941 106,727 2,997,251 13 34,197,420 497 96,018,295

2000 311,353 3,008,704 80,972 115,717 3,516,746 11 20,269,750 603 121,352,142

2001 352,684 3,297,971 85,103 107,845 3,843,603 11 21,321,920 444 122,093,360

2002 358,646 3,544,889 92,717 119,114 4,115,366 8 9,138,570 524 116,403,746

2003 380,222 3,760,935 87,719 115,496 4,344,372 16 17,427,830 509 125,576,430

(1) Information provided by the Johnson County Appraiser's Office.
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Table 14 ]

CITY OF LEAWOOD, KANSAS

Miscellaneous Statistics [

December 31, 2003
Date of incorporation 1948

Form of government Mayor/Council/Administrator

Number of council members 8 I
Term in years 4

Number of personnel, full-time equivalents (excluding police and fire): 135.63 t
Area in square miles 14.7
City facilities and services:

Miles of streets 177.6 center lane miles
Number of street lights 2,497

Function/program

Culture and recreation:

Parks 6

Park acreage 423 IWalking Trail mileage 7.75
Acquatic Centers 1

Golf courses 1 ITennis courts 6
Soccer fields 14
Baseball diamonds 3

Programs 150 r
Fire protection:

Number of stations 3

Number of paid firefighters 51
Number of volunteer firefighters 0.7
Number of nonfire fighting personnel 1

Number of fire calls answered 1,6g 1
Number of ambulance calls answered 1,170
Number of fire inspections 660

Police protection: INumber of stations 1

Number of certified officers 56

Number of noncertified personnel 22.6 INumber of patrol districts 3

Number of traffic violations 18,065

Number of physical arrests 1,572 tNumber of dispatch calls 34,846
Number of alarm calls 2,632

Facilities and services not provided by the City:Education:

Number of elementary schools 4

Number of middle schools 2 INumber of Catholic Schools 3
Churches:

Protestant 7 ICatholic 84 3
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